REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOR PRESCRIPTION SAFETY EYEGLASSES



S P E C I F I C A T I O N S EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT OAKLAND, CALIFORNIA

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOR PRESCRIPTION SAFETY EYEGLASSES

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO.PUR 085 PRESCRIPTION SAFETY EYEGLASSES TABLE OF CONTENTS

SCOPE OF PROJECT

NOTICE TO CONTRACTORS

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

BIDDER'S CHECKLIST

SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS

PROPOSAL PAGE

BIDDING SHEETS

BIDDER'S REFERENCES AND STATEMENT OF EXPERIENCE

CONTRACT EQUITY PROGRAM (CEP) GUIDELINES AND FORMS

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

SAMPLE FORMS

SCOPE OF PROJECT

The scope of this project is to provide District employees with prescription safety eyeglasses, as needed and as ordered by the District during the three-year period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2016, with two (2) options, to be exercised at the sole discretion of the District, to extend the contract for additional one (1)-year periods.

NOTICE TO CONTRACTORS

Sealed proposals for furnishing and delivering the District's requirements of prescription safety eyeglasses will be received at the Purchasing Division Office of the East Bay Municipal Utility District, 375 Eleventh Street, First Floor, Oakland, California, until 4:00 p.m., Wednesday, May 1, 2013.

This is not a public bid opening.

Request for Proposal No.PUR 085 covering this material may be obtained by prospective bidders by downloading from our website at www.ebmud.com/business/professional-and-general-services-proposals. Bidders are responsible for reviewing www.ebmud.com for any published addenda. Hard copies of addenda will not be mailed out.

LYNELLE M. LEWIS Secretary of the District

Oakland, California

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

Submit original plus one copy of your proposal.

Proposals shall be made in accordance with the provisions of Paragraphs 1, 2, and 3 of the General Requirements.

All forms requiring specific information should be removed and stapled together. Special attention should be given to completing Form P-25, "Contractor Employment Data and Certification"; and Form P-46, "Designation of Subcontractors." Any bidder needing assistance in completing these forms should contact the District's Contract Equity Office at (510) 287-0114 prior to submitting a bid.

The supplement "Various Statistical Areas (Permanent, Full-Time Work Force)" is provided for the use of the bidder.

SMALL BUSINESS DISCOUNT: As authorized by California Public Contract Code Section 2002, the District has established a Small Business Discount Program which grants qualified small business enterprises (SBEs) a 5% bid discount when competing against non-small businesses for contracts. In accordance with the law, the discount is calculated as 5% of the lowest bid, with the discount not to exceed \$50,000. For material and supply contracts this discount will be calculated and applied to the estimated annual dollar value of the contract for each and every year the contract exists.

A small business is defined as an independently owned and operated business which is not dominant in its field of operation and which, together with affiliates, has fewer than 100 employees and average annual gross receipts of fourteen million dollars (\$14,000,000) or less over the previous three years or is a manufacturer with 100 or fewer employees.

No contract security is required under this proposal. However, each bidder agrees that the District reserves the legal right against the bidder for damages actually sustained by it for failure to execute the contract in accordance with this proposal, any reference to a bid bond in this proposal notwithstanding.

ALL MAILED PROPOSALS SHALL BE ADDRESSED AS FOLLOWS: "Proposal for Prescription Safety Eyeglasses, RFP No. PUR 085, Andrew A. Akelman, Manager of Purchasing, East Bay Municipal Utility District, P.O. Box 24055, Oakland, California 94623." It shall also have stated thereon the bidder's name and address.

HAND DELIVERED, COURIER OR PACKAGED DELIVERY SERVICE SHALL BE ADDRESSED AS ABOVE AND PRESENTED TO: Purchasing Division, 375 Eleventh Street, First Floor, Oakland, California 94607.

Bids submitted via electronic transmissions will not be accepted. Electronic transmissions include faxed bids and bids sent by electronic mail ("e-mail"). Watermarked proposal copies obtained via the Internet will not be accepted.

<u>BID PROTESTS</u>. Bid protests must be in writing and must be received no later than 7 working days after the bid opening or proposal due date. The District may dismiss the protest as untimely if it is received after this specified time frame. Protests will be accepted from bidders or potential bidders only, and must be filed in accordance with District Procedure 402 on Bid Protests.

All bid protests must contain a detailed and complete written statement describing the reason(s) for protest and include the name, telephone number, and address of a protestor or the person representing the protestor. Protests must be mailed or hand delivered to the Manager of Purchasing, East Bay Municipal Utility District, 375 Eleventh Street, Oakland, CA 94607. Protests submitted to the Manager of Purchasing by facsimile transmission to (510) 287-0688 or electronic mail to contact person listed in proposal are acceptable as they allow staff to review concerns in a timely manner. Facsimile and electronic mail protests must be followed by a mailed or hand delivered identical copy of the protest on company letterhead. Any bid protest filed with any other District office shall be forwarded immediately to the Manager of Purchasing. The District may transmit copies of the protest and any attached documentation to all other interested parties who may be affected by the outcome of the protest. Further information concerning bid protests is contained in District Procedure 402.

<u>ELECTRONIC BIDS</u>: The District is now sending proposals by e-mail to all potential bidders. Bidders must ensure that their business information is current in the District Vendor Registration system. In order to access this system, please go to <u>www.ebmud.com</u>, click on Business, click on Vendor Login and follow the instruction included in this section.

Bidders are responsible for reviewing <u>www.ebmud.com</u> for any published addenda. Hard copies of addenda will not be mailed out.

BIDDER'S CHECKLIST

This checklist is provided to assist you in preparing a complete bid.

1.	"Proposal" Sheet, Form E-058A
	DATE
	FIRM NAME entered exactly as it appears on your corporate seal and invoice.
	CORPORATE SEAL legibly affixed where indicated; or POWER OF ATTORNEY with corporate seal
	authorizing the individual to sign the bid; or NOTARIAL ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF SIGNATURE, if company is a partnership or proprietorship.
2.	"Contractor Employment Data and Certification" Sheet, Form P-25
	Occupation Continue A. D. O. S. D.
	Complete Sections A, B, C & D. Sign the form as indicated.
3.	"Designation of Subcontractors" Sheet, Form P-46
	Complete if appropriate.
4.	"Contract Equity Participation" Sheet, Form P-40
	Complete if appropriate.
5.	"Bidder's References and Statement of Experience" Sheet, Form P-020
	Filled in sufficient detail to establish your ability to carry out the specifications.
6.	"Bidding Sheets" and "Bidding Summary Sheets"
	Prices as indicated; check prices and extensions carefully (unit prices will prevail in case of error).
	Discounts—this is intended for cash discounts only. Discounts off of list prices should be reflected in the
	unit price. Bidder's Federal E.I. number.
	States of Gastar E.i. Harrison
7.	"Questionnaire" (where applicable)
	Answer as required, describing equipment as necessary.
	Include literature, catalogs, drawings, etc., as required.
8.	"Instructions to Bidder" Sheet
	Sealed envelope clearly marked as instructed.
9.	Exceptions
	The specifications have been carefully prepared describing items desired. In almost all instances,
	exceptions to the specifications will automatically disqualify your bid. Please avoid them. (See General Requirements, Para. 2.)
10.	"Addenda"
	Include initialed copies, if any, of all addenda with the Proposal Form when submitting your bid.
11.	"Errors"
	Double check your bid carefully before submitting. There is no excuse for carelessness. Remember, you
	are committing your firm to large sums of money if your bid is accepted. Be careful.
	Be sure your bid is received in the Purchasing Division office prior to the specified time . The District is
	not responsible for bids received late or delivered to the wrong location.

A3-1.0 11/00

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO.PUR 085

PRESCRIPTION SAFETY EYEGLASSES

SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS

1.1 THE REQUIREMENT

Under these specifications, it is required that prescription safety glasses be provided to District employees delivered f.o.b. to EBMUD Receiving Dock, 1010 Franklin Street, Oakland, California 94607, as ordered, during the three-year period, July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2016, with two (2) options, to be exercised at the sole discretion of the District, to extend the contract for additional one (1)-year periods.

The vendor shall provide:

- In-house order-taking, delivery, repair, and fitting of prescription safety eyeglasses provided at an hourly rate.
- Safety glasses will meet ANSI Z87.1 standards.
- District will supply clear lenses to employees. Tinted, photo gray, or photo sun lenses are to be paid for by the employee at the time the order is placed.
- EBMUD prefers in-house order taking, but will consider offsite visits to vendors with an
 established network located within the service area. This area includes: Alameda, Alamo,
 Albany, Berkeley, Castro Valley, Crockett, Danville, Diablo, El Cerrito, El Sobrante,
 Emeryville, Hayward, Hercules, Kensington, Lafayette, Moraga, Oakland, Orinda, Piedmont,
 Pinole, Pleasant Hill, Richmond, Rodeo, San Leandro, San Lorenzo, San Pablo, San Ramon,
 Selby and Walnut Creek.
- Eyeglasses are to be furnished with cases.

1.2 QUANTITIES

This is a requirements contract. The quantities specified on the Bidding Sheet are estimates only, not guaranteed, and may be increased or decreased by the District in any amount to conform to the District's needs. Orders for the District's requirements will be placed as needed.

1.3 DELIVERY REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor must provide safety frames and lenses that meet or exceed ANSI Z87.1 standards and have sufficient resources to fulfill orders within 4 weeks. Contractor will meet with District staff on-site twice per month and fit personnel with safety frames and lenses with employee provided prescription. Contractor will also assess problems and remedy fit and prescription deficiencies during these site visits.

Deliveries will be accepted between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 4:30 p.m., Monday through Friday. No deliveries will be accepted on Saturdays, Sundays or District holidays.

1.4 **DEVIATIONS/EXCEPTIONS**

TAKING EXCEPTION TO THE PROPOSAL OR FAILURE ON THE PART OF THE BIDDER TO COMPLY WITH ALL REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS PROPOSAL MAY SUBJECT THE BID TO REJECTION. IF NO DEVIATIONS ARE SHOWN, THE BIDDER WILL BE REQUIRED TO FURNISH THE MATERIAL EXACTLY AS SPECIFIED HEREIN. THE BURDEN OF PROOF OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE SPECIFICATIONS WILL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BIDDER.

This Request for Proposal (or RFP) is subject to acceptance only on the terms and conditions stated in this Request for Proposal. Any additional or different terms and conditions proposed by Vendor are hereby rejected, and shall be of no force or effect unless expressly assented to in writing by the District. There shall be no contract except upon the terms and conditions provided in this Proposal.

The District reserves the right to reject any and all bids.

District terms and conditions supersede bidders' terms and conditions.

1.5 COMPARISON OF BIDS AND CONTRACT AWARD

Bids will be compared by Schedule and contract(s) awarded to the responsible/responsive bidder(s) offering the lowest total cost to the District for each schedule. Bidders must bid on all items within the Schedule in the estimated quantity indicated to be responsive. Bidders may, but are not required to, bid on all schedules. Bid may be considered non-responsive if all items within the schedule are not bid on. Contract may be awarded to more than one vendor.

1.6 TERM OF CONTRACT

This contract shall be for a three-year period beginning July 1, 2013 and ending June 30, 2016, with two (2) options, to be exercised at the sole discretion of the District, to extend the contract for additional one (1)-year periods.

1.7 TERMINATION

This Agreement may be terminated for convenience by the District provided the Contractor is given written notice of not less than thirty (30) calendar days. Upon such termination, the District shall pay the Contractor the amount owing for the products ordered and properly received by the District. This shall be the sole and exclusive remedy to which the Contractor is entitled in the event of termination by the District.

1.8 INSPECTION

The District will inspect material after its arrival at the delivery point. Contractor is solely responsible for ensuring the material arrives at the District's ship-to location free of defects and manufactured in strict conformance with the specifications.

1.9 PAYMENT

One hundred percent (100%) of the contract price for each shipment will be paid to the Contractor within 30 days after receipt and acceptance of the material and proper invoicing, unless specific discount payment terms are offered. Payment terms of less than 20 days will not be accepted.

1.10 INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE

A. <u>Indemnification</u>

CONTRACTOR expressly agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless DISTRICT and its Directors, officers, agents and employees from and against any and all loss, liability, expense, claims, suits, and damages, including attorneys' fees, arising out of or resulting from CONTRACTOR's, its associates', employees', subcontractors', or other agents' negligent acts, errors or omissions, or willful misconduct, in the operation and/or performance under this Agreement.

B. <u>Insurance Requirements</u>

CONTRACTOR shall take out and maintain during the life of the Agreement all the insurance required in this section, and if requested shall submit certificates for review and approval by DISTRICT. The Notice to Proceed shall not be issued, and CONTRACTOR shall not commence work until such insurance has been approved by DISTRICT. The certificates shall be on forms approved by DISTRICT. Acceptance of the certificates shall not relieve CONTRACTOR of any of the insurance requirements, nor decrease the liability of CONTRACTOR. DISTRICT reserves the right to require CONTRACTOR to provide insurance policies for review by DISTRICT.

C. Workers Compensation Insurance

CONTRACTOR shall take out and maintain during the life of the Agreement <u>Workers Compensation Insurance</u> for all of its employees on the project. In lieu of evidence of Workers Compensation Insurance, DISTRICT will accept a Self-Insured Certificate from the State of California. CONTRACTOR shall require any subcontractor to provide it with evidence of Workers Compensation Insurance.

D. <u>Commercial General Liability Insurance</u>

CONTRACTOR shall take out and maintain during the life of the Agreement <u>Automobile and General Liability Insurance</u> that provides protection from claims which may arise from operations or performance under this Agreement. If CONTRACTOR elects to self-insure (self-fund) any liability exposure during the contract period above \$50,000, CONTRACTOR is required to notify the DISTRICT immediately. Any request to self-insure must first be approved by the DISTRICT before the changed terms are accepted. CONTRACTOR shall require any subcontractor to provide evidence of liability insurance coverages.

The amounts of insurance shall be not less than the following:

\$1,000,000/Occurrence, Bodily Injury, Property Damage -- Automobile. \$1,000,000/Occurrence, Bodily Injury, Property Damage -- General Liability.

The following coverages or endorsements must be included in the policy(ies):

- 1. DISTRICT and its Directors, officers, and employees are **additional insureds** in the policy(ies) as to the work being performed under this Agreement.
- 2. The coverage is **primary** and non-contributory to any other insurance carried by DISTRICT.
- 3. The policy(ies) cover(s) **contractual liability** for the assumption of liability through the indemnity in this Agreement.
- 4. The policy(ies) is(are) written on an **occurrence** basis.
- 5. The policy(ies) cover(s) **broad form** property damage liability.
- 6. The policy(ies) cover(s) **personal injury** (libel, slander, and trespass) liability.
- 7. The policy(ies) cover(s) products and completed operations.
- 8. The policy(ies) cover(s) use of **non-owned** automobiles and equipment.

9. The policy(ies) shall not be canceled nor materially altered unless **30 days' written notice** is given to DISTRICT.

E. <u>Professional Liability Insurance</u>

CONTRACTOR shall take out and maintain during the life of the Agreement, professional liability insurance (Errors and Omissions) with a minimum of \$1,000,000 of liability coverage. The policy will provide 30 days' written notice to DISTRICT for cancellation or reduction in coverage.

1.11 BIDDER/CONTRACTOR COMMUNICATIONS WITH THE DISTRICT

All communications regarding this request for proposal should be directed to the individual named herein for the specific topics:

East Bay Municipal Utility District P.O. Box 24055 Oakland, CA 94623

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS/COMMERCIAL TERMS & CONDITIONS OF THE BID PROCESS:

Attn: Marianne Jew, Buyer II (510) 287-0406

CONTRACT EQUITY PROGRAM Attn: Contract Equity Office (510) 287-0114

AFTER AWARD OF CONTRACT: Attn: Marianne Jew, Buyer II (510) 287-0406

.





TO THE EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT, OAKLAND, CALIFORNIA:

Pursuant to the foregoing notice to contractors, the undersigned bidder herewith submits a proposal on the bidding form or forms attached hereto and made a part hereof, and binds itself on award by the East Bay Municipal Utility District under this proposal to execute in accordance with such award a contract, of which this proposal and the said notice to contractors, instructions to bidders, general conditions, specifications, and drawings shall be a part, and to furnish the bond or bonds and insurance required by the specifications. The notice to contractors, instructions to bidders, general conditions, specifications, and drawings are made a part of this proposal and all provisions thereof are hereby accepted.

The bidder further agrees that, in case of its default in executing the required contract and the required bond or bonds, or furnishing the required insurance, the money payable under the bid bond accompanying this proposal shall be applied by the District towards payment of the damage to the District on account of such default, as provided in the specifications.

FIRM

(Affix Corporate Seal or Notarial Acknowledgment of Signature - if partnership or proprietorship)

BY (Signature)
TITLE
ADDRESS
ZIP
PHONE
Nature of firm (corporation, partnership, etc.) and names of individual members of the firm, or names and titles of officers of the firm, or names and titles of officers of the corporation.
Corporation organized under the laws of the State of

REQYEST FOR PROPOSAL NO.PUR 085

PRESCRIPTION SAFETY EYEGLASSES

BIDDING SUMMARY SHEET

		TOTAL
Schedule I	Safety Eyeglasses and lenses for Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA) Respiratory Masks	\$
Schedule II	Office & Off-site Visits	\$
	TOTAL OF ALL SCHEDULES	\$
Payment tern	n discount	
	discount must allow for payment after receipt and accepted in the later. Payment of less than 20 days car	
	uoted shall not include the California State Sales or Us e District to the Contractor, if licensed to collect same,	
Bidder's Fede (Employer's I	eral E.I. Numberdentification)	
	ess Enterprise?* □ Yes □ No the CEP/EEO Guidelines in this proposal.	
Contact pers	son for contract execution:	
Name of Con	npany:	
Name:	Title:	
Mailing Addre	ess:	
City, State, Z	ip Code:	
Phone No.:	Fax No).:
E-mail Addre	SS:	

PUR085 BS/1

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO.PUR 085

PRESCRIPTION SAFETY EYEGLASSES

BIDDING SHEET

BIDDER MUST BID ON ALL ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED RESPONSIVE; ALL ITEMS MUST BE RECYCLED TO BE CONSIDERED RESPONSIVE.

SCHEDULE I – Prescription frames with lenses and lenses only.

Item	Estimated Annual Quantity	Description	Unit Price	Total
1.	110 Pairs	Prescription Safety Eyeglasses and Frames that meet ANSI Z87.1 standards	\$	\$
2.	25 Pairs	Prescription Safety Lenses – inserts for SCBA masks	\$	\$
		TOTAL SCHEDULE I	\$	*

BIDDER MUST BID ON ALL ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED RESPONSIVE.

SCHEDULE II – Vendor site visits.

Item	Estimated Annual Quantity	Description	Unit Price	Total
1.	24 Visits	Site visit to fulfill orders for prescription safety glasses and frames and to address fit and/or prescription issues.		
			\$	\$
2.	50 Visits	Office visit to fulfill orders for prescription safety glasses and frames and to address fit and/or prescription issues.		
			\$	\$
TOTAL SCHEDULE II		\$	*	

^{*}ENTER TOTAL ON BIDDING SUMMARY SHEET.

PUR085 BS/2



BIDDER'S REFERENCES & STATEMENT OF EXPERIENCE

The bidder is required to state below what work of a similar character to that included in the proposed contract he has done, and give references which will fully disclose his responsibility, experience, skill and business standing.		

CONTRACT EQUITY PROGRAM AND

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY GUIDELINES



DECEMBER 2011

TABLE OF CONTENTS

I. CONTRACT EQUITY PROGRAM	1
A. Good Faith Outreach Efforts	2
B. Exemptions From Outreach Requirements	3
C. Informational Meetings	5
D. Documentation	
II. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY	6
A. Employment Data & Certification (Form P-025)	
B. Good Faith Outreach Efforts Towards Equal Employment Opportunity	
C. Contractors' EEO Responsibilities Arising From The Performance Of The District Contract	
D. Monitoring Compliance	8
III. CONTRACT COMPLIANCE	9
A. Records	9
B. Subcontractor Substitution or Replacement	10
IV. CONSEQUENCES OF NONCOMPLIANCE	12
A. Enforcement	
B. Contractor's Noncompliance	
C. Subcontractor's Noncompliance	13
V. SUMMARY OF FORMS	14
VI. APPENDIX	15
Policy Statements	15
Agencies With Business Directories	16
Glossary of Terms	17

I. CONTRACT EQUITY PROGRAM

The following Contract Equity Program Guidelines were established to enhance equal opportunities for business owners of all races, ethnicities and genders who are interested in doing business with the District pursuant to Policy 17 approved by the Board of Directors on June 9, 1998. Policy 17 was superseded by Policy 1.03 – Contract Equity Program and Policy 1.04 – Contractor's Compliance with Equal Employment Opportunity, following the passage of Proposition 209. Further, the District provides assistance to all prospective bidders/proposers in obtaining subcontractor participation by all availability groups, including identification of possible business enterprises.

The Contract Equity Program requires bidders/proposers to conduct outreach to all potential subcontractors to ensure that opportunities to participate in District contracts are publicized as widely as possible. This outreach is intended to broaden the pool of competitive bidders, lower prices to the District, and help achieve diversity among District contractors¹ and subcontractors. The District's expectation is that with bidders'/proposers' Good Faith Outreach Efforts to subcontractors of all races and both genders, the composition of District contractors and subcontractors will reflect the broad diversity present in the marketplace, consistent with the Contracting Objectives of the Contract Equity Program.

Additionally, contractors located in counties, such as Alameda, Contra Costa, San Joaquin, Calaveras, Amador and other counties that are directly impacted by District contracts and/or operations, should be targeted in outreach efforts.

A potential contractor's noncompliance with these guidelines may deem a bid or proposal nonresponsive, and therefore, ineligible for contract award.

The requirement of the District's Contract Equity Program is that all bidders/proposers **must document** Good Faith Outreach Efforts in the ten areas set forth in Section A. Section B provides an exemption from this requirement for bidders/proposers who meet the District's Contracting Objectives or obtain a waiver from the District's Contract Equity Administrator.

Materiality: The documentation and certification required by the District are material, will govern the potential contractor and its subcontractors' performance and will be made part of the bid/proposal and the resulting contract with the District.

Nondiscrimination: There shall be no discrimination or harassment or retaliation against any person, or group of persons, on account of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (genetic characteristics or cancer), age, marital status, or sexual orientation within the meaning of California Government Code Section 12940 in the performance of this contract.

December 2011

¹ A company, firm, joint venture or individual who enters into an agreement with the District to provide services, i.e., construction, professional services and general services, and delivery of materials, supplies, and equipment. A contractor may be a construction contractor, a consultant, a vendor, a supplier, or a trucker.

The contractor shall not establish or permit any such practice(s) of discrimination, harassment or retaliation with reference to the contract or any part thereof. The contractor must post applicable EEO policies and the District's "Working Together With Respect" poster to this effect in their workplaces where the District contract is being performed.

Severability: Should any part of the Contract Equity (CE) Program be declared to be unconstitutional, invalid, or beyond the authority of the District to enter into or carry out, by a final decision of a court or tribunal of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the Program, which shall continue in full force and effect.

A. GOOD FAITH OUTREACH EFFORTS

All potential contractors must implement all ten of the Good Faith Outreach Efforts listed below which are based on California Public Contract Code Section 2000², subject to the provisions of Section B.

The apparent low bidder/recommended proposer shall submit Form P-041 documenting such Good Faith Outreach Efforts, as applicable, within **48 hours** of bid opening or in accordance with submittal guidelines in the request for proposal, bid document, or Instruction to Bidders.

To demonstrate Good Faith Outreach Efforts in each of the ten areas, the potential contractor should have:

- 1. *attended* any pre-solicitation, pre-bid or pre-proposal meetings scheduled by the District to inform all bidders/proposers of the Contract Equity Program requirements, or
 - **signed and submitted** the Contract Equity Program Guidelines Certification, Form P-042, with the bid or proposal documents, certifying that the bidder is informed as to the Program requirements;
- 2. *identified and selected* specific subcontracting areas of the contract to be performed by enterprises in all availability groups;
- 3. *advertised* not less than 10 calendar days before the date the bids/proposals are due, in one or more daily or weekly newspapers, minority, women or other association publications, trade-oriented journals, or other media, specified by the District, for all business enterprises that may be interested in participating in the contract;
- 4. **provided** written notice of interest in bidding/proposing on the contract to a reasonable number of enterprises in all availability groups not less than 10 calendar days before the date the bids/proposals are due. The District's business directory, which includes white men-, white women-, and ethnic minority-owned firms, is available free of charge³. A list of agencies that also provide business directories can be found in the appendix of these guidelines;

²The District will apply Section 2000 to include ALL business enterprises (<u>not</u> limited to minority- and women-owned business enterprises); and the term "local agency" in that section has been changed to "District".

³ The names of the firms listed in these directories are offered as a service. EBMUD has no independent knowledge regarding the composition of the firm's ownership, or the quality of the work performed by any listed entity.

- 5. *followed up* initial solicitations of interest by contacting the business enterprises to determine with certainty whether the enterprises are interested in performing specific items of the project;
- 6. *provided* interested business enterprises with information about the proposal, plans, specifications, and requirements for the selected subcontracting or material supply work;
- 7. **requested** assistance from community organizations or contractor groups; local, state, or federal business assistance offices, or other organizations that provide assistance in the recruitment and placement of business enterprises, if any is available;
- 8. **negotiated** in good faith with the business enterprises in all availability groups, and did not unjustifiably reject as unsatisfactory bids/proposals prepared by any such business enterprises, as determined by the District;
- 9. *advised and/or made* efforts, where applicable, to assist interested business enterprises in all availability groups in obtaining bonds, lines of credit, or insurance required by the District or potential contractor; and
- 10. *implemented* efforts that the District could reasonably expect to obtain business enterprise participation reflective of the broad diversity of contractors in the marketplace.

B. EXEMPTIONS FROM OUTREACH REQUIREMENTS

1. CONTRACTING OBJECTIVES

The District has Contracting Objectives⁴ based on the availability of all firms located in the District's geographic market areas that are interested in and able to do business with the District. Contracting Objectives apply to all contractors, regardless of their gender or ethnicity and to all contracts that are determined to have subcontracting opportunities, including material or supply opportunities and trucking. The CE Program groups all businesses into three (business owner) availability groups⁵:

- White Men
- White Women
- Ethnic Minority (both men and women)

Publicly held corporations managed and controlled by 51% of one of the three availability groups may count their participation towards meeting the contracting objective for that group.

Potential contractors who already meet the Contracting Objectives for all three availability groups, as described in the chart on page 4, are exempt from the Good Faith Outreach Efforts requirements set forth in Section A.

⁴ The Contracting Objectives represent percentages of the total value of a contract. The dollar value of the work performed by the contractor and his/her subcontractors is included in calculating the amount of participation by each availability group and determining if the Contracting Objectives are met. Contracting Objectives are based on the results of a Disparity Study conducted by the District which verified the number of businesses located within the District's geographic market area available to perform prime and subcontract work in all contracting categories.

⁵ For example, when subcontracting opportunities are available, a \$200,000 construction contract would have 25% (\$50,000) or more of the work performed by white men-owned businesses, 9% (\$18,000) or more by white womenowned businesses, and 25% (\$50,000) by ethnic minority-owned businesses (both men and women.)

CONTRACTING OBJECTIVES			
AVAILABILITY	CONTRACTING CATEGORIES		
GROUP	Construction	Professional or General Services	Materials & Supplies
White Men	25%	25%	25%
White Women	9%	6%	2%
Ethnic Minorities (Men and Women)	25%	25%	25%

Contract participation includes all written agreements with business enterprises for any goods and services required for the completion of the project. This includes participation as a:

- Contractor
- Joint Venture Partner
- Subcontractor
- Vendor/Dealer of materials/supplies incorporated or expended in the work
- Supplier/Broker of other services necessary to fulfill the requirements of the contract, such as shipping, transportation, testing, equipment rental, insurance services, etc.

All business enterprises must perform a commercially useful function, i.e., must be responsible for the execution of a distinct element of work and must carry out their responsibility by actually performing, managing and/or supervising the work.

The dollar value of the following is included for determining the amount of participation by each availability group for the Contracting Objectives:

- the work to be performed by the contractor,
- the work to be performed by each member of a joint venture,
- the work to be performed by subcontractors at any tier
- material or supplies purchased from a manufacturer or dealer of such material or supplies, if not previously counted by contractor, joint venture, or subcontractor in their dollar value,
- reasonable fees and commissions for providing bona fide services to procure and/or deliver
 essential personnel, facilities, equipment, materials, or supplies required for performance of
 the contract,
- reasonable fees and commissions for providing bonds or insurance specifically required for the performance of the contract, and
- the dollar value of trucking is based on the following:
 - the amount to be paid to a trucker who performs the trucking with his/her own trucks, tractors, and employees,
 - the amount to be paid to trucking brokers provided the broker has submitted to the District information identifying the availability groups of all truckers to be used on the project, or
 - twenty percent (20%) of the amount to be paid to a trucking broker who has not provided such information.

2. NO SUBCONTRACTING OPPORTUNITIES

Contracts which have no subcontracting, supplying, or trucking opportunities are exempt from the Good Faith Outreach Efforts requirements.

3. WAIVER

Under limited circumstances, at the discretion of the Contract Equity Administrator, and upon written request by the bidder/proposer, a waiver of the Contract Equity Program's Good Faith Outreach Efforts requirements may be granted.

C. INFORMATIONAL MEETINGS

The District may hold pre-solicitation, pre-bid, and pre-proposal meetings to explain the technical specifications and the Contract Equity Program and Equal Employment Opportunity Guidelines for an individual project. All prospective bidders/proposers/subcontractors are strongly advised to attend such pre-meetings. The time and place of the meeting, if any, will be announced in the front section of the bid/proposal document.

Pre-award and/or pre-notice to proceed meetings may be held with the recommended awardee to ensure that the technical specifications and the Contract Equity Program and Equal Employment Opportunity Guidelines for the project are fully understood, and to discuss the contents of the submitted forms and documents.

D. DOCUMENTATION

1. CONSTRUCTION AND MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES CONTRACTS WITH SUBCONTRACTABLE ITEMS ONLY

Apparent low bidders may be required to document Good Faith Outreach Efforts to achieve subcontractor participation within **48 hours** after bid opening unless this requirement is otherwise stated in the Instruction to Bidders. Failure to submit the required information by the time specified may be grounds for determining the bid nonresponsive.

II. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

Pursuant to Policy 1.04 – Contractors' Compliance With Equal Employment Opportunity, approved by the Board of Directors, all business enterprises and their subcontractors performing work for the District must be Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) employers. All business enterprises and their subcontractors shall assure that there is no discrimination, harassment or retaliation against any person based on sex, race, color, ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (genetic characteristics or cancer), age, marital status, or sexual orientation within the meaning of California Government Code Section 12940, and shall be bound by all laws prohibiting such discrimination, harassment or retaliation in employment.

District contractors must have written policies and procedures that a) prohibit EEO discrimination, harassment and retaliation, and b) set forth the contractor's investigation procedures for responding to EEO complaints. Contractors must submit documentation of those written policies and procedures upon request by the District in order to be considered as eligible for contract award. Contractors must also post applicable EEO policies, procedures and the District's "Working Together With Respect" poster in their workplaces where the District contract is being performed.

A. EMPLOYMENT DATA & CERTIFICATION (Form P-025)

The Employment Data and Certification Form P-025 shall be completed as specified below or bid/proposal may be deemed nonresponsive:

1. For all Bidders/Proposers of the bid/proposal to be submitted with bid package:

Complete Sections A and B of Form P-025. In Section B, the required employment data shall be for the bidder's/proposer's permanent workforce⁶ only. An EEO-1 Report may be submitted in lieu of completing Section B. For informational purposes, the P-025 Form provides for a comparison of the bidder's/proposer's current workforce with the composition of the labor market in the Metropolitan Statistical Area or Areas (MSA) from which the bidder's/proposer's workforce is drawn. The bidder/proposer shall also complete Sections C and D of Form P-025.

2. For Subcontractors/Vendors/Truckers within 48 hours:

Each bidder/proposer shall submit a Form P-025 for each subcontractor/vendor/trucker known at this time performing work equal to or greater than \$70,000 under this specification in accordance with submission requirements given in the Instructions to Bidders or the Request for Proposal. If no submission requirements are given, the Form P-025 must be submitted by the apparent low bidder or recommended proposer within 48 hours after bid opening or proposal submission due date. The form shall be completed as provided in Paragraph 1. For informational purposes, the P-025 Form provides for a comparison of the subcontractor's/vendor's/trucker's current workforce with the composition of the labor market in the MSA from which the subcontractor's/vendor's/trucker's workforce is drawn.

December 2011

⁶ Permanent workforce is defined as employees with 6 months or more of continuous service.

B. GOOD FAITH OUTREACH EFFORTS TOWARDS EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

Upon request, the apparent low bidder/proposer shall submit satisfactory documentation showing voluntary and legal Good Faith Outreach Efforts on its part to assure that its employment practices comply with EEO laws.

The District has not attempted to set forth either the minimum or maximum voluntary steps that contractors may take to address their respective employment situations. Contractors who do business with the District have flexibility to make those efforts that are best suited to their particular employment situation so long as those efforts are legal, in good faith and will best serve the goal of equal employment opportunity. Contractors have the option of submitting a copy of their Affirmative Action Plan, if they have one, or documentation of Good Faith Outreach Efforts which may include, but is not limited to, the following:

- Disseminating an equal employment opportunity and affirmative action policy both within the organization and externally.
- Having a recruitment program designed to attract qualified members of all ethnic and gender backgrounds available in the relevant job market such as by:
 - ✓ Notifying community organizations when employment opportunities are available and maintaining records of the organizations' responses;
 - ✓ Maintaining a file of the names and addresses of every worker referred as a result of outreach efforts, indicating what action was taken with respect to each referred person, and if the person was not employed, the reasons why;
 - ✓ Promptly notifying the District when the union(s) with whom the contractor or subcontractor has a collective bargaining agreement has not referred a worker, as requested; and
 - ✓ Making periodic recruitment efforts at schools, organizations, recruitment and training centers.
- Having a systematic plan to organize work and redesign jobs in ways that provide opportunities for persons lacking journey-level knowledge or skills to enter and, with appropriate training, to progress in a career field.
- Revamping selection procedures and seniority practices which have not yet been validated in order to reduce or eliminate exclusionary effects on particular groups in particular job classifications.
- Initiating measures designed to assure that members of all ethnic and gender backgrounds who are qualified to perform the job are included within the pool of persons from which the selection is made.
- Participating in community-based training programs and on-the-job training opportunities.
- Promoting after-school, summer and vacation employment for youth.
- Establishing a system to regularly monitor the effectiveness of the program for removing barriers to achieve equal employment opportunity, and the procedures for making timely adjustments in this program where effectiveness is not demonstrated.

C. CONTRACTORS' EEO RESPONSIBILITIES ARISING FROM THE PERFORMANCE OF THE DISTRICT CONTRACT

The District requires all contractors to comply with state and federal EEO laws.

Contractors are required to promptly and appropriately address all EEO concerns that arise from the performance of the District contract raised by:

- Their employees,
- Their job applicants,
- EBMUD employees who allege EEO discrimination or harassment by the contractor or contractor's employee, and/or
- Members of the public who allege EEO discrimination or harassment by the contractor or contractor's employees.

All contractors must cooperate fully with any District investigation of EEO complaints arising from the performance of the District contract that involve District staff. In that event, the District will provide copies of its policies and procedures regarding such investigations, and will require the contractor's cooperation in accordance with those policies and procedures.

All contractors must distribute copies of their EEO policy. EEO complaint procedure, and the District's "Working Together With Respect" brochure/poster to all of their employees and post them in a prominent and accessible location in the workplace or on the project site. These documents must provide the name and contact information of the contractor's staff responsible for responding to EEO concerns.

Contractors are required to provide training to all of their supervisors and managers to assure that they are aware of the contractor's prohibition against EEO discrimination, harassment and retaliation, and understand the process to report EEO concerns; and supervisors and managers must respond appropriately when they become aware of EEO concerns. This training must comply with California Government Code Section 12950.1.

D. MONITORING COMPLIANCE

1. PRE-CONTRACT AWARD:

The District will evaluate the documentation provided by the apparent low bidder/proposer under Section II.B and may request further documentation. The apparent low bidder/proposer shall submit all additional documentation required by the District in a timely manner or may be deemed a nonresponsive bidder/proposer. A nonresponsive bidder/proposer may be deemed ineligible for contract award.

2. POST-CONTRACT AWARD:

The District will evaluate the documentation provided by the contractor in response to EEO complaints filed per Section II.C and may request further documentation. Contractors who fail to submit the required documentation in a timely manner may be denied future contracts with the District or have their contracts terminated.

III. CONTRACT COMPLIANCE

A. RECORDS

All firms doing business with the District shall:

- maintain records of all business enterprises performing work on the project, and records of total award and payments made to those enterprises,
- permit authorized District staff and/or authorized District representatives to review such records as may be required to assure the accuracy of the submitted information,
- submit a summary of subcontractor payments to the District with each payment request/invoice on the Subcontractor Payment Report (Form P-047) in the format required by the District,
- maintain all employment and personnel records of employees who worked on the District project for a minimum of two years, and
- maintain records of action(s) taken to address EEO discrimination, harassment, and retaliation complaints filed during and arising from the performance of the EBMUD contract.

NOTE: Failure to submit the required information in a timely manner may cause the District to hire an auditor, <u>at the contractor's expense</u>, to compile summary payment information, and/or may result in the withholding of payments and/or termination of the contract.

If requested by the District, the contractor shall submit the contractor's and/or subcontractors' records. These records are specified in the contract and <u>may</u> include any or all of the following:

- All contracts or purchase orders entered into with subcontractors, truckers, suppliers, and/or vendors;
- Payment records reflecting total contract award and total dollars actually paid to subcontractors, truckers, suppliers, and/or vendors. Such records shall indicate the name, business address, and actual monthly amount for each firm. Upon completion of the contract, the contractor shall submit, within thirty (30) calendar days, a summary of all the monthly summaries showing total dollars actually paid each firm during the whole contract;
- Certified weekly payroll records showing all employees and workers hired and dollar
 amounts and wage rates paid for work on this contract. Such payroll records shall include
 the name, address, social security number, sex, race, and other sufficient information for
 each employee to allow District verification of contractor and/or subcontractor compliance
 with the requirements for Equal Employment Opportunity;
- Monthly Employment Utilization Reports within ten (10) calendar days after the end of the month;
- Documentation of all Good Faith Outreach Efforts utilized in order to solicit, promote and increase all availability groups' participation;
- Records of action(s) taken to address EEO discrimination, harassment, and retaliation complaints filed during and arising from the performance of the EBMUD contract; and
- Any other records or documentation maintained by the contractor or its subcontractors
 which indicate their compliance with these Contract Equity Program and Equal
 Employment Opportunity Guidelines.

The contractor and all its subcontractors shall maintain records which include for each employee their:

- name,
- address,
- telephone number,
- construction trade/union affiliation/trade status (if any),
- dates of changes in trade status (if any),
- employee identification number (if any)/social security number,
- race,
- sex,
- hours worked per week in the indicated trade/task, and
- rate of pay.

Records shall be maintained in an easily understandable and retrievable form approved by the District.

B. SUBCONTRACTOR SUBSTITUTION OR REPLACEMENT

The contractor may request to substitute or replace any subcontractor, including truckers, vendors, and suppliers, listed on the Form P-040, Contract Equity Participation, filed with the District prior to award of contract. Such requests must be in writing, clearly state the reasons for the substitution or replacement, and provide supporting evidence or documentation as appropriate. No substitution or replacement shall occur without the prior written authorization of the District.

Authorization to utilize another subcontractor may be requested for the following reasons:

- 1. When the subcontractor listed in the bid after having had a reasonable opportunity to do so fails or refuses to execute a written contract, when that written contract, based upon the general terms, conditions, plans and specifications for the project involved or the terms of such subcontractor's written bid, is presented to the subcontractor by the Contractor, or
- 2. When the listed subcontractor becomes bankrupt or insolvent, or
- 3. When the listed subcontractor fails or refuses to perform his subcontract, or
- 4. When the listed subcontractor fails or refuses to meet the bond requirements of the Contractor as set forth in Section 4108 of the Public Contract Code, or
- 5. When the Contractor demonstrates to the District, subject to the further provisions set forth in Section 4107.5 of the Public Contract Code, that the name of the subcontractor was listed as the result of an inadvertent clerical error, or
- 6. When the listed subcontractor is not licensed pursuant to the Contractors License Law, or
- 7. When the District determines that the work performed by the listed subcontractor is substantially unsatisfactory and not in substantial accordance with the plans and specifications, or that the subcontractor is substantially delaying or disrupting the progress of the work, or
- 8. When the listed subcontractor is ineligible to work on a public works project pursuant to Section 1777.1 or 1777.7 of the Labor Code, or
- 9. When the listed subcontractor is not a responsible contractor.

Prior to approval of the prime contractor's request for the substitution the District shall give notice in writing to the listed subcontractor of the prime contractor's request to substitute and of the reasons for the request. The notice shall be served by certified or registered mail to the last known address of the subcontractor. The listed subcontractor who has been so notified shall have five working days within which to submit written objections to the substitution to the awarding authority. Failure to file these written objections shall constitute the listed subcontractor's consent to the substitution.

If written objections are filed, the District shall give notice in writing of at least five working days to the listed subcontractor of a hearing by the awarding authority on the prime contractor's request for substitution.

The contractor whose bid is accepted may not:

- (a) permit a subcontract to be voluntarily assigned or transferred or allow it to be performed by anyone other than the original subcontractor listed in the original bid, without the consent of the District.
- (b) Other than in the performance of "change orders" causing changes or deviations from the original contract, sublet or subcontract any portion of the work in excess of one-half of 1 percent of the prime contractor's total bid as to which his or her original bid did not designate a subcontractor.

If a subcontractor is replaced, the contractor shall make Good Faith Outreach Efforts as set forth in these Contract Equity Program and Equal Employment Opportunity Guidelines when replacing the original or listed subcontractor with another District-approved firm. The contractor shall not be entitled to any payment for such work or material unless it is performed or supplied by the listed subcontractor or by other forces (including those of the contractor) pursuant to prior written authorization of the District.

IV. CONSEQUENCES OF NONCOMPLIANCE

A. ENFORCEMENT

During the performance of the contract, the District may review the contractor's and its subcontractors' compliance with these Contract Equity Program and Equal Employment Opportunity Guidelines. Compliance shall be evaluated and measured from the initial day of performance under this contract. Noncompliance may be deemed a substantial material breach of the contract and the contract may be terminated.

Where the District finds the contractor or any of its subcontractors to be in noncompliance, the District may take such actions and impose such sanctions and penalties, described below, as may be appropriate to enforce compliance and recover District costs for damages caused by the breach of contract.

The District will notify the contractor in writing where the contractor or any of its subcontractors are not in compliance with these Contract Equity Program and Equal Employment Opportunity Guidelines. The contractor shall then notify the District in writing within five (5) working days as to what corrective measures shall be implemented by the contractor and/or subcontractor, trucker, vendor, and supplier to effect compliance.

In the event that the contractor or any of its subcontractors is still in noncompliance fifteen (15) working days after the date of the District's written citation, the contractor shall provide the District, within two (2) working days from the District request to do so, written documentation of all corrective measures and Good Faith Outreach Efforts implemented and their results.

B. CONTRACTOR'S NONCOMPLIANCE

In the event of the contractor's willful or inadvertent noncompliance with these Contract Equity Program and Equal Employment Opportunity Guidelines during bidding/proposing, the contractor's bid/ proposal may be deemed nonresponsive, and therefore, ineligible for contract award.

In the event of the contractor's noncompliance with these Contract Equity Program and Equal Employment Opportunity Guidelines during the performance of the contract, whether willful or inadvertent, the contractor may be considered in material breach of contract. In addition to any other remedy which the District may have under this contract or by operation of law, the District in its sole discretion may impose the following provisions against the contractor:

• Withhold progress payments to the contractor starting from the date of the District's written notification of noncompliance to the contractor and continuing for up to sixty (60) working days after the notification date or until compliance is verified by the District, or the contractor demonstrates to the satisfaction of the District that Good Faith Outreach Efforts have been implemented to correct the noncompliance, whichever occurs first.

In the event of willful noncompliance as determined by the District, cancellation or suspension of the contract in whole or in part with continuance thereof conditioned upon a satisfactory showing to the District of the contractor's ability to comply.

C. SUBCONTRACTOR'S NONCOMPLIANCE

The contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with these Contract Equity Program and Equal Employment Opportunity Guidelines.

The contractor shall take such action, including sanctions and penalties as appropriate, with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as necessary to enforce the terms and conditions of these Contract Equity Program and Equal Employment Opportunity Guidelines. In the event that the District determines that a subcontractor is in noncompliance, the District may also ask the contractor to terminate any such subcontract and substitute an eligible subcontractor in lieu thereof, at no increase in the contract price or time for performance.

Failure of the contractor to enforce subcontractor compliance with these guidelines may also be deemed a substantial material breach of the contract. The District, in its sole discretion, may impose against the contractor any or all of the provisions noted for contractor's noncompliance until such time that subcontractor's compliance is achieved.

V. SUMMARY OF FORMS

CONSTRUCTION BIDDERS MUST COMPLETE AND SUBMIT:

	Form P-025 – Employment Data and Certification (all Bidders must submit with their bid; the apparent low Bidder must also submit for all known Subcontractors doing \$70,000 or more worth of work within 48 hours of bid opening) Form P-040 – Contract Equity Participation (apparent low and second low Bidders within 48 hours of bid opening)			
	Form P-041 – Good Faith Outreach Efforts Documentation (apparent low and second low Bidders within 48 hours of bid opening)			
	Form P-042 – Contract Equity Program Guidelines Certification Form (apparent low and second low Bidders within 48 hours of bid opening, if applicable)			
	Form P-046 – Designation of Subcontractors (all Bidders must submit with bid)			
	MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES BIDDERS MUST COMPLETE AND SUBMIT:			
	Form P-025 – Employment Data and Certification (all Bidders must submit with their bid; the apparent low Bidder must also submit for all known Subcontractors doing \$70,000 or more worth of work within 48 hours of bid opening)			
	Form P-040 – Contract Equity Participation (apparent low and second low Bidders within 48 hours of bid opening)			
☐ Form P-041 – Good Faith Outreach Efforts Documentation (apparent low and second low Bidders within 48 hours of bid opening)				
	PROFESSIONAL/GENERAL SERVICES PROPOSERS MUST COMPLETE AND SUBMIT WITH PROPOSAL:			
	Form P-025 – Employment Data and Certification (all Proposers and their known Subcontractors doing \$70,000 or more worth of work)			
	Form P-040 – Contract Equity Participation (all Proposers)			
	Form P-041 – Good Faith Outreach Efforts Documentation (recommended Proposer as requested)			

VI. APPENDIX

POLICY STATEMENTS

Policy 1.03 – Contract Equity Program

Prevent the District from participating in or perpetuating ongoing discrimination in the marketplace while avoiding the granting of preferences on the basis of race, gender and other protected categories as prohibited by Article 1, Section 31, of the California Constitution. The District will encourage balanced opportunities among all ethnic and gender groups by establishing objectives for contract participation based on the availability in its geographic market areas of businesses by race and gender that are willing and able to do business with the District. The contracting objectives will be reviewed regularly and the progress reported to the Board of Directors in order to steadily reach a fair and equal parity in contract participation among all ethnic and gender contracting groups.

Policy 1.04 – Contractors' Compliance With Equal Employment Opportunity

Ensure that all enterprises that do business with the District take lawful and adequate steps to assure that their employment practices comply with EEO laws.

Equal employment opportunity is the law of the land. All contractors doing business with the District shall agree not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (genetic characteristics or cancer), age, marital status, or sexual orientation within the meaning of California Government Code Section 12940.

Contractors shall furnish all information and reports required by the District to ensure their compliance with this policy. Notification of this policy will be included in contract specifications and will serve as official notice in determining responsiveness and compliance. Contractors who fail to comply with this policy may be denied contracts with the District or have their contracts terminated.

AGENCIES WITH BUSINESS DIRECTORIES

• State of California – Department of Transportation

Civil Rights Program – MS 79

1823 – 14th Street, Sacramento, CA 95814

916-324-8347, Fax: 916-324-1949, Toll Free: 866-810-6346

Email: DBE Certification@dot.ca.gov

Website: http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/bep/find certified.htm

Publication Distribution Unit - Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Directory

1900 Royal Oaks Drive, Sacramento, CA 95815-3800 916-445-3520

• City of Oakland - Contract Compliance & Employment Services Division

250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 3341, Oakland, CA 94612

510-238-3970, Fax: 510-238-3363 Email: cces@oaklandnet.com

Website: http://cces.oaklandnet.com/ContComp

• City and County of San Francisco – Human Rights Commission

25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 800, San Francisco, CA 94102-6033

415-252-2530

Email: Beverly.Popek@sfgov.org - Beverly Popek, Unit Representative

Website: http://sf-hrc.org/index.aspx?page=86

Port of Oakland

530 Water Street, Oakland, CA 94607

510-627-1419

Email: <u>pbell@portoakland.com</u> – Pamela Bell, SRD Contract Compliance

Website: http://www.portofoakland.com/srd/

Alameda County General Services Agency

1221 Oak Street, Room 249, Oakland, CA 94612

510-891-5500;

Email: Patricia McFadden for SLEB Certification – patricia.mcfadden@acgov.org

Susan Wewetzer for Contract Compliance - susan.wewetzer@acgov.org

Website: http://www.acgov.org/auditor/sleb

• Department of General Services – Office of Small Business & DVBE Services

707 3rd Street, 1st Floor, Room 400, West Sacramento, CA 95605

916-375-4940, Fax: 916-375-4950 Email: <u>OSDSHelp@dgs.ca.gov</u>

EBMUD BUSINESS DIRECTORY

375 – 11th Street, Oakland, CA 94623

510-287-0114, Fax: 510-287-2158 Email: <u>cntrteg@ebmud.com</u>

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

AVAILABILITY GROUPS:

- White Men-Owned Business: An independent business that is at least 51% owned, operated and controlled by one or more nonethnic minority men who are citizens or lawful permanent residents of the United States.
- White Women-Owned Business: An independent business that is at least 51% owned, operated and controlled by one or more nonethnic minority women who are citizens or lawful permanent residents of the United States.
- Ethnic Minority-Owned Business: An independent business that is at least 51% owned, operated and controlled by one or more ethnic minority men and/or ethnic minority women from the following groups who are citizens or lawful permanent residents of the United States:

• Black/African American

Persons having origins in any of the racial groups of Africa

• Hispanic/Latin American

Persons of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American origin

• Asian-Pacific Island American

Persons having origins from Japan, China, Taiwan, Korea, Vietnam, Laos, Cambodia, the Philippines, Samoa, Guam, the U. S. Trust Territories of the Pacific, or the Northern Marianas

• Asian-Indian American

Persons having origins from India, Pakistan, or Bangladesh

Native American

Persons having origins in any of the original peoples of the Americas who maintain cultural identification through tribal affiliation or community recognition

CONTRACTING OBJECTIVES:

The minimum percentage of the total value of a contract to be represented by businesses in each availability group, depending on the type of contract.

CONTRACTOR:

A company, firm, joint venture or individual who enters into an agreement with the District to provide services, i.e., construction, professional services and general services, and delivery of materials, supplies, and equipment. A contractor may be a construction contractor, a consultant, a vendor, a supplier, or a trucker.

CONTROL:

There are two aspects of control: operational and managerial control. Under operational control, the 51% or more owner must show that he or she independently makes the basic decisions in daily and long-term business operations. To determine managerial control, the owner must demonstrate that he or she makes independent and unilateral business decisions that guide the future and destiny of payroll clerks, letters of credit, contractual matters, banking services, and other such agreements.

DEALER:

One who owns, operates, or maintains a store, warehouse or other establishment in which the materials or supplies required for the performance of the contract are bought, kept in stock, and regularly sold to the public in the usual course of business. To be a dealer, the firm must engage in, as its principal business, and in its own name, the purchase and resale of the products in question. A dealer in such bulk items as steel, cement, stone, gravel, and petroleum products need not keep such products in stock, but must own and/or operate distribution equipment to receive full dollar credit.

INDEPENDENT BUSINESS:

A business that is not inextricably associated with another firm through ownership, affiliation, or sharing of employees, facilities, profits, and losses.

GEOGRAPHIC MARKET AREA:

Counties where most of the businesses are located which receive District contract awards based on contract type as identified in the District's 1997 Disparity Study.

- Construction: Alameda, Contra Costa, San Francisco, and San Mateo Counties
- Professional & General Services: Alameda, Contra Costa, San Francisco, Santa Clara, and Marin Counties
- Materials & Supplies: Alameda, Contra Costa, San Francisco, Santa Clara, and San Joaquin Counties

JOINT VENTURE:

An undertaking by two or more persons, without a corporate or partnership designation, formed for the purpose of carrying out a single business enterprise for profit.

LOCAL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE:

Businesses whose primary place of business is a fixed office located in counties, such as Alameda, Contra Costa, San Joaquin, Calaveras, Amador and other counties that are directly impacted by District contracts and/or operations. A fixed office is not a post office box, a temporary location, a movable property, a location that was established to oversee a project such as a construction project office, or work space provided in exchange for services, as opposed to monetary rent.

POTENTIAL CONTRACTOR:

A company, firm, joint venture, or individual who has participated in a competitive bid process or a qualification selection process to do business with the District as a construction contractor, consultant, vendor, supplier, or trucker.

REASONABLE FEES AND COMMISSIONS:

Fees and commissions that are not excessive as compared with those customarily allowed for similar services.

SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE:

An independently owned and operated business with 100 or fewer employees and average annual gross receipts of \$14 million or less over the last three tax years or is a manufacturer with 100 or fewer employees.

SUBCONTRACTOR:

A company, firm, joint venture, or individual who enters into an agreement with a contractor to provide services on a District contract. A subcontractor may be a construction subcontractor, a subconsultant, a vendor, a supplier, or a trucker at any tier/level of participation.

SUPPLIER:

A company, firm, joint venture, or individual who provides materials, supplies, or equipment.

VENDOR:

A company, firm, joint venture, or individual who enters into an agreement with the District to provide services, i.e., construction, professional services and general services, and delivery of materials, supplies, and equipment. A contractor may be a construction contractor, a consultant, a vendor, a supplier, or a trucker.



EMPLOYMENT DATA AND CERTIFICATION INSTRUCTIONS (P-025)

COMPLETION OF THIS FORM IS REQUIRED FOR ALL BIDS AND PROPOSALS.
AN IMPROPER OR INCOMPLETE FORM MAY RESULT IN REJECTION OF YOUR BID OR PROPOSAL OR TERMINATION OF YOUR CONTRACT

The East Bay Municipal Utility District REQUIRES the completion of this form when submitting any formal bid in response to an Invitation for Bid (IFB), Statement of Qualifications (SOQ), or Request for Proposal (RFP) for materials, equipment, construction or professional or general services. It is the policy of the District to prohibit Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) discrimination, harassment, and retaliation by any contractor, subcontractor, vendor, supplier, or consultant based on sex, race, color, ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (genetic characteristics or cancer), age, marital status, or sexual orientation within the meaning of California Government Code Section 12940. Failure to complete all applicable sections of this form may be considered a nonresponsive reply to the IFB, SOQ or RFP and may cause its rejection.

THE SECTIONS OF FORM P-025 ARE DESCRIBED BELOW WITH SPECIAL DIRECTIONS.

SECTION A

TYPE OF ORGANIZATION AND COMPOSITION OF OWNERSHIP

SECTION B

EMPLOYMENT DATA AND WORKFORCE LOCATION

A firm's appropriate Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) is defined as the location in which the business solely or predominantly operates to provide requested product(s) or service(s).

SECTION C

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY REQUIREMENTS

SECTION D

CERTIFICATION OF FIRM'S OWNERSHIP

FORM P-025 SUPPLEMENT

METROPOLITAN STATISTICAL AREA (MSA)

(for use in Section B-1a for comparing workforce parity)

Note: If you have difficulty completing this form or need clarification of the instructions, contact the Contract Equity Office at (510) 287-0114 for assistance prior to submitting your bid or proposal.

P-025 • 12/11 **1**

COMPLETION OF THIS FORM IS REQUIRED FOR ALL BIDS AND PROPOSALS

					SE	CTION A				
FIRM NA	ME								PRIME	
STREET	ADDRESS (Cit	ty, State	e, ZIP)						SUB	
									Submit a separa	ate P-25 form for
MAILING	ADDRESS (C	ity, Stat	e, ZIP)							ctor/consultant 670,000 or more.
PHONE N	NO.		FA	AX NO.		WEBSI	TE		E-MAIL	
								ith ED	MUDO -	VEQ
	DIVIDUAL		ANIZATIOI OF OWNER:	N .		Have you ever	r done busine	SS WITH EB	MUD?	YES NO
	DIVIDUAL				07475.0					
	ONPROFIT CC			Y HELD CORP.	SIAIEC	OF INCORPORATION	:			
	RIVATE CORP.		FOREIGN							
Name(s)	, title, family r	elations	ship(s) and perce	entage of stock	ownership for a	Il shareholders who TITLE		e of stock in to RELATIONSI		DEDOENTAGE
NAIVIE						IIILE	FAMILI	RELATIONS	TIP	PERCENTAGE%
										%
										%
□ Jo	INT VENTUR	RE								
			percentage of v	vork to be realiz	ed by each.					
										0/
										%
										%
□ p/	ARTNERSHIP	•								
			whether (G) Ger	neral or (L) Limit	ed.					
10.0										
			OF OWN			.1				
muica	te the per	cent c	of ethnic and	a genaer o	wnersnip be	HOW				
	Non	-Hispa	ınic Origin			Asian			Other	
			Black/	Hispanic/		Asian-Pacific	Asian-		Other	
	Whit Cauca		African American	Latin American	Asian American	Islander American	Indian American	Native American	Indicate	 Refuse to State*
MALE										
	_								1	+
FEMAL	E									+
TOTAL									1	1

 $^{^{\}star}$ Firms that refuse to state will be classified as "Other".

SECTION B

B1. EMPLOYMENT DATA

Indicate below the number of employees in each occupational category for each of the ethnic groups listed for your firm's permanent workforce. (Report employees in only one category. Permanent workforce is defined as full- and part-time employees wth 6 months or more of continuous service.) You may attach your EEO1 report in lieu of completeing section below. Please provide both your firm's consolidated and individual establishment EEO1 reports.

				RACE/ETHNICITY (number of employees)											
	His	panic atino	Not Hispanic or Latino												
	or L	atino			Ma	le		T	Female					_	
	Male	Female	White	Black or African American	Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander	Asian	American Indian or Alaska Native	Two or More Races	White	Black or African American	Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander	Asian	American Indian or Alaska Native	Two or More Races	Total A-N
JOB CATEGORIES	А	В	С	D	Е	F	G	Н	I	J	K	L	М	N	0
Executive/Senior Level Officials & Managers															
First/Mid-Level Officials & Managers															
Professionals															
Technicians															
Sales Workers															
Administrative Support Workers															
Craft Workers															
Laborers & Helpers															
Service Workers															
Firm's Total															
Bay Area* Total															

^{*} Alameda, Contra Costa, Marin, Napa, San Francisco, San Mateo, Solano, Sonoma, and Santa Clara Counties

B1a. Identify the metropolitan statistical area (MSA) from which your firm's total permanent workforce is drawn. (See page 5)	B1d. Name of person responsible for affirmative action and compliance with equal employment opportunity laws in your firm:			
B1b. If your firms total permanent workforce is located in one county or parish, please identify:	PRINT NAME			
B1c. Is employment data confidental? YES NO	TITLE			
	TELEPHONE NUMBER			

SECTION C

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY REQUIREMENTS

The undersigned has been (is) authorized to ex	recute this certificate on behalf of
and does hereby certify that the answers to this	s compliance form and the information stated herein are true and correct.
The undersigned does further certify that	OF FIRM
shall not discriminate against or harass or retali	iate against any employee or applicant for employment on account of sex,
race, color, ancestry, religious creed, national o	origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical
condition (genetic characteristics or cancer), ac	ge, marital status, or sexual orientation within the meaning of California
Government Code Section 12940, and shall co	omply with all applicable provisions of State and Federal requirements
regarding equal employment opportunity and a	affirmative action reporting and compliance programs including having a
District approved process for responding to co	mplaints of discrimination, h arassment, and retaliation.
	SECTION D
CERTIFICATION OF FIRM'S OWNERS	SHIP
The undersigned has been (is) authorized to exe	ecute this certificate on behalf ofand and
swears under penalty of perjury that the foregoin	ng statements are true and correct and that they include all material information
necessary to identify and explain the operations	s of this firm as well as the ownership thereof. Any material misrepresentation
will be grounds for terminating any purchase ord	lers or contracts which may be or was awarded and for initiating actions under
Federal or State laws concerning false statemer	nts. The District reserves the right to request support documentation, such as
tax records, articles of incorporation and board r	minutes to verify composition of ownership.
EXECUTED IN	
	CITY, COUNTY, STATE
ON	
	DATE
BY	
PRINT NAME	TITLE
SIGNATURE	PHONE NUMBER

P-025 SUPPLEMENT

Instructions to Determine Your Statistical Areas (SA): If you operate a business solely or predominantly within one of the SA's listed below, use that location. If you have multiple facilities within a single state, use a State SA. If you have multiple facilities throughout the United States, use Total United States percentage. If you have any questions, call 510-287-0114.

CA Statistical Areas	WM%	WW%	EM%
Bakersfield	29.7%	24.6%	45.7%
Fresno	25.1%	21.6%	53.3%
Los Angeles-Long Beach	20.2%	16.4%	63.5%
Merced	24.9%	21.1%	54.0%
Modesto	33.0%	28.4%	38.6%
Oakland	28.0%	24.2%	47.8%
Redding	46.6%	41.5%	11.9%
Riverside-San Bernadino	28.2%	23.4%	48.3%
Sacramento	36.1%	32.3%	31.6%
San Diego	32.4%	27.5%	40.2%
San Francisco	30.8%	25.1%	44.0%

CA Statistical Areas	WM%	WW%	EM%
San Jose	26.9%	21.0%	52.1%
San Luis Obispo-Atascadero- Pasa Robles	42.3%	36.6%	21.1%
Santa Barbara-Santa Maria-			
Lompoc	31.8%	28.6%	39.6%
Santa Cruz-Watsonville	37.5%	32.1%	30.4%
Santa Rosa	39.8%	36.9%	23.4%
Stockton-Lodi	28.1%	24.5%	47.4%
Vallejo-Fairfield-Napa	30.2%	26.8%	42.9%
Ventura	33.3%	27.6%	39.1%
Yuba City	34.9%	31.0%	34.1%

CA Counties	WM%	WW%	EM%
9 Bay Area Counties*	32.3%	27.8%	39.9%
Alameda/Contra Costa	28.9%	24.9%	46.2%
Alameda	24.5%	21.6%	53.9%
Contra Costa	33.3%	28.2%	38.5%
El Dorado	46.7%	39.4%	13.9%
Fresno	24.7%	21.4%	54.0%
Los Angeles	20.2%	16.4%	63.5%
Marin	42.8%	38.4%	18.8%
Mendocino	40.4%	37.0%	22.6%
Merced	24.9%	21.1%	54.0%
Monterey	23.8%	21.3%	54.9%
Napa	37.6%	33.6%	28.8%
Orange	30.9%	25.5%	43.6%
Riverside	30.1%	24.7%	45.3%
Sacramento	32.7%	30.0%	37.3%

CA Counties	WM%	ww%	EM%
San Bernardino	26.5%	22.3%	51.1%
San Diego	32.4%	27.5%	40.2%
San Francisco	29.2%	22.5%	48.3%
San Joaquin	28.1%	24.5%	47.4%
San Luis Obisbo	42.3%	36.6%	21.1%
San Mateo	28.6%	23.6%	47.9%
Santa Clara	26.9%	21.0%	52.1%
Santa Cruz	37.5%	32.1%	30.4%
Shasta	46.6%	41.5%	11.9%
Solano	27.8%	24.6%	47.6%
Sonoma	39.8%	36.9%	23.4%
Stanislaus	33.0%	28.4%	28.6%
Yolo	31.7%	29.8%	38.5%
Yuba	36.7%	34.0%	29.4%
*Alameda Contra Costa Marin Nana	San Francisco	San Mateo	

^{*}Alameda, Contra Costa, Marin, Napa, San Francisco, San Mateo, Solano, Sonoma, And Santa Clara

STATES	WM%	ww%	EM%
Alabama	40.8%	33.2%	26.0%
Alaska	40.2%	33.1%	26.7%
Arizona	37.0%	31.7%	31.3%
Arkansas	44.0%	37.5%	18.5%
California	28.0%	23.6%	48.4%
Colorado	42.2%	36.2%	21.6%
Conneticut	42.4%	37.8%	19.8%
Deleware	39.3%	35.5%	25.3%
District of Columbia	19.2%	18.0%	62.8%
Florida	35.7%	30.9%	33.4%
Georgia	35.9%	30.0%	34.2%
Hawaii	13.1%	11.1%	75.8%
Idaho	48.6%	40.8%	10.5%
Illinois	38.6%	33.6%	27.8%
Indiana	47.1%	40.6%	12.3%
lowa	49.2%	44.8%	6.0%
Kansas	45.6%	40.1%	14.3%
Kentucky	48.4%	41.9%	9.7%
Louisiana	37.3%	30.0%	32.7%
Maine	50.6%	46.5%	2.9%
Maryland	34.0%	30.2%	35.8%
Massachusetts	44.0%	40.6%	15.3%
Michigan	44.1%	37.5%	18.4%
Minnesota	47.6%	43.1%	9.3%
Mississippi	36.1%	29.6%	34.3%
Missouri	45.6%	40.3%	14.1%

STATES	WM%	WW%	EM%
Montana	49.1%	42.5%	8.4%
Nebraska	47.1%	42.7%	10.2%
Nevada	37.8%	31.3%	30.9%
New Hampshire	50.6%	45.0%	4.4%
New Jersey	36.7%	31.5%	31.7%
New Mexico	26.6%	23.1%	50.3%
New York	35.0%	30.9%	34.1%
North Carolina	39.1%	34.0%	26.9%
North Dakota	49.6%	44.4%	6.0%
Ohio	46.1%	40.2%	13.7%
Oklahoma	41.7%	35.4%	22.9%
Oregon	45.5%	39.5%	15.0%
Pennsylvania	46.4%	40.2%	13.4%
Rhode Island	44.1%	41.4%	14.5%
South Carolina	37.6%	32.4%	30.0%
South Dakota	48.0%	43.6%	8.4%
Tennessee	44.1%	37.1%	18.8%
Texas	31.5%	26.1%	42.4%
Utah	47.7%	39.1%	13.2%
Vermont	50.4%	46.3%	3.3%
Virginia	38.6%	34.0%	27.3%
Washington	43.6%	37.6%	18.8%
West Virginia	51.9%	43.3%	4.9%
Wisconsin	47.5%	42.8%	9.6%
Wyoming	49.0%	41.4%	9.6%

Total USA 39.0% 33.7% 27.2%

WM = White Men, **WW** = White Women, **EM** = Ethnic Minority.

Figures compiled from the 2000 Census of Population, U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of the Census.



BIDDER'S /

PROPOSER'S NAME

² Ethnic Classifications:

CONTRACT EQUITY PARTICIPATION (P-040)

PROJECT NAME

			SPEC. / F	PROPOSAL NO. (If applicable)			
E-MAIL ADDRESS		BID / PROPOSAL AMOUNT \$					
PHONE NO.			FAX NO.	·			
lote: This form shall be submitted by first and seco with their proposal for professional and general servic complete a P-025 form if they are doing work for ove	es. All subcont		lers within 4				
COMPANY AND CONTACT NAME, ADDRESS,	OWNER	SHIP		TYPE OF WORK	ESTIMATED		
PHONE NUMBER AND E-MAIL ADDRESS	ETHNICITY ²	GEN M	DER F	TO BE DONE ³	DOLLAR AMOUNT		
Note: Additional spaces are provided on the back o	of this form.						
The above bidder/proposer shall enter into isted in this schedule conditioned upon e replacements of these subcontractors must Program and Equal Employment Opportui	xecution of a st comply with	a con n Sed	ntract with	n East Bay Municipal Utility D Substitution or Replacement	istrict. Substitution o		
Signature of Authorized Bidder / Proposer's Official				Date			
Print Name				Title			

NA

H/LA Hispanic/Latin American

Native American

W/CA White/Caucasian

American

A/PIA Asian-Pacific Islander American

B/AA Black/African American

³ If 100% of items are not to be performed or furnished by the subcontractor, describe exact portion, location (if necessary) of item to be performed or furnished by that subcontractor.



CONTRACT EQUITY PARTICIPATION (P-040)

COMPANY AND CONTACT NAME ADDRESS	OWNER	SHIP		TYPE OF WORK	ESTIMATED	
COMPANY AND CONTACT NAME, ADDRESS, PHONE NUMBER AND E-MAIL ADDRESS	ETHNICITY ²	GENDER		TO BE DONE ³	DOLLAR AMOUNT	
		М	F			

P-040 • 12/11 2

The apparent low bidder shall submit the following information to demonstrate that a good faith outreach effort to meet the contracting Objectives has been made if its Form P-040 Contract Equity Participation indicates that the Contracting Objectives will not be met. It is suggested that even if the Contracting Objectives appear to be met on Form P-040, this form still needs to be completed in case the contracting Objectives are determined by District evaluation to have not been met.

The *complete* description of the following items along with all of the Good Faith Outreach Efforts (GFOE's) are in the Section IA of the Contract Equity Program and Equal Employment Opportunity Guidelines:

- Items of works for which the bidder requested subbids, trucking or materials to be supplied by subcontractors in all availability groups
- Information furnished interested subcontractors, truckers, or suppliers in the way of plans, specifications and requirements for the work
- Any breakdown of items of work into economically feasible units to facilitate subcontractor participation (GFOE's #2 & 6)

ITEMS OF WORK OR SUPPLIES IDENTIFIED	
1	6
2	7
3	8
4	9
5	10
INFORMATION FURNISHED	
BREAKDOWN OF ITEMS	

P-041 • 12/05



■ The names and dates of advertisements in the project's geographic market area of each newspaper, trade paper, and availability group focus paper in which a request for subcontractor participation for this project was placed by the bidder (GFOE #3)

NAME OF PUBLICATION	DATES OF ADVERTISEMENT

■ The names and dates of notices of all subcontractors in the project's geographic market area solicited by direct mail, and the dates and methods used for following up initial solicitations to determine with certainty whether the subcontractors were interested (GFOE's #4 & 5)

NAME OF SUBCONTRACTOR SOLICITED	SOLICITATION DATES	FOLLOW UP METHODS	FOLLOW UP DATES

P-041 • 12/05



- The names of subcontractors who submitted bids for any of the work indicated on page one of this form whose bids were not accepted
- A summary of the bidder's discussions and/or negotiations with them
- The name of the subcontractor or supplier that was selected for that portion of the work, and the reasons for the bidder's choice. (If the reason for rejecting a bid was price, give the price bid by the rejected subcontractor and the price bid by the selected subcontractor or supplier.) (GFOE #8)

NAME OF REJECTED SUBCONTRACTOR	SUMMARY OF DISCUSSIONS / NEGOTIATIONS	NAME OF SELECTED SUBCONTRACTOR AND REASONS FOR THAT CHOICE

Please Note: Use additional sheets of paper, if necessary.



 Assistance that the bidder has extended to rejected subcontractors identified above to remedy the deficiency in their subbids (GFOE #9)

NAME OF REJECTED SUBCONTRACTOR	ASSISTANCE EXTENDED

■ Any additional data to support a demonstration of good faith efforts, such as contacts with subcontractor's assistance agencies (GFOE #7):

NAME OF COMMUNITY ORGANIZATIONS OR CONTRACTORS GROUPS	ADDITIONAL GOOD FAITH OUTREACH EFFORTS

Please Note: Use additional sheets of paper, if necessary. Appropriate documentation, such as copies of newspaper ads, letters soliciting bids, and telephone logs, should accompany this form.

P-041 • 12/05 4



CONTRACT EQUITY PROGRAM GUIDELINES CERTIFICATION (P-042)

Pursuant to the East Bay Municipal Utility District's ("District") Contract Equity Program Guidelines, Section I, Paragraph A.1, I hereby declare, under the penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California, that

1)	I am duly authorized to execute	this certification on behalf of my company, corporation, joint-venture or sole-
	proprietorship, which has submit	ted a bid/proposal to District Specification/Proposal No;
2)	I am familiar with the District's C program's requirements;	ontract Equity Program Guidelines, and have read and understood all of the
3)	I understand and agree to comp therein, including each of the Go	oly with the District's Contract Equity Program, and all of the requirements ood Faith Outreach Efforts; and
4)	and harassment and retaliation)	y with the District's Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) (nondiscrimination policies and procedures. I will post and distribute applicable District-supplied ocess for responding to complaints of EEO discrimination, harassment, and vided upon request.
5)	proprietorship, that the District r	agree, on behalf of my company, corporation, joint-venture or sole- may disqualify the bid/proposal submitted if we have not complied with the m, and all of the requirements therein.
		(City, County, State)
ON		FOR
	(Month, Date, Year)	(Bidder's / Proposer's Company Name)
BY		
	(Print Name)	(Title)
	(Signature)	(Phone Number)

P-042 • 12/05



DESIGNATION OF SUBCONTRACTORS (P-046)

Name of Bidder/Proposer		
In compliance with the provisions of the Subletting a Chapter 4 of the Public Contract Code of the State of Caforth below:		
 The name and location of the place of business of service to the Contractor in or about the construction State of California who, under subcontract to the Co or improvement according to detailed drawings cont of one-half of one percent of the Contractor's total bit 	of the work or improvement, or a su intractor, specially fabricates and in tained in the plans and specification	bcontractor licensed in the stalls a portion of the work
The portion and estimated dollar amount of the workshall list only one subcontractor for each portion as it.		
Please type or legibly print (attach additional sheets as no	ecessary)	
SUBCONTRACTOR'S COMPANY NAME CONTACT NAME / ADDRESS / PHONE NO.	DESCRIPTION OF WORK TO BE PERFORMED	ESTIMATED \$ AMOUNT

Designation of Subcontractors – From Public Contract Code Section 4105 - 4110

Circumvention by a general contractor who bids as a prime contractor of the requirement under Section 4104 for him or her to list his or her subcontractors, by the device of listing another contractor who will in turn sublet portions constituting the majority of the work covered by the prime contract, shall be considered a violation of this chapter and shall subject that prime contractor to the penalties set forth in Sections 4110 and 4111.

If a prime contractor fails to specify a subcontractor or if a prime contractor specifies more than one subcontractor for the same portion of work to be performed under the contract in excess of one-half of 1 percent of the prime contractor's total bid, the prime contractor agrees that he or she is fully qualified to perform that portion himself or herself, and that the prime contractor shall perform that portion himself or herself. If after award of contract, the prime contractor subcontracts, except as provided for in Sections 4107 or 4109, any such portion of the work, the prime contractor shall be subject to the penalties named in Section 4111.

A prime contractor whose bid is accepted may not:

- (a) Substitute a person as subcontractor in place of the subcontractor listed in the original bid, except that the awarding authority, or its duly authorized officer, may, except as otherwise provided in Section 4107.5, consent to the substitution of another person as a subcontractor in any of the following situations:
 - (1) When the subcontractor listed in the bid, after having had a reasonable opportunity to do so, fails or refuses to execute a written contract for the scope of work specified in the subcontractor's bid and at the price specified in the subcontractor's bid, when that written contract, based upon the general terms, conditions, plans, and specifications for the project involved or the terms of that subcontractor's written bid, is presented to the subcontractor by the prime contractor.
 - (2) When the listed subcontractor becomes bankrupt or insolvent.
 - (3) When the listed subcontractor fails or refuses to perform his or her subcontract.
 - (4) When the listed subcontractor fails or refuses to meet the bond requirements of the prime contractor as set forth in Section 4108.
 - (5) When the prime contractor demonstrates to the awarding authority, or its duly authorized officer, subject to the further provisions set forth in Section 4107.5, that the name of the subcontractor was listed as the result of an inadvertent clerical error.
 - (6) When the listed subcontractor is not licensed pursuant to the Contractors License Law.
 - (7) When the awarding authority, or its duly authorized officer, determines that the work performed by the listed subcontractor is substantially unsatisfactory and not in substantial accordance with the plans and specifications, or that the subcontractor is substantially delaying or disrupting the progress of the work.
 - (8) When the listed subcontractor is ineligible to work on a public works project pursuant to Section 1777.1 or 1777.7 of the Labor Code.
 - (9) When the awarding authority determines that a listed subcontractor is not a responsible contractor.

Prior to approval of the prime contractor's request for the substitution, the awarding authority, or its duly authorized officer, shall give notice in writing to the listed subcontractor of the prime contractor's request to substitute and of the reasons for the request. The notice shall be served by certified or registered mail to the last known address of the subcontractor. The listed subcontractor who has been so notified has five working days within which to submit written objections to the substitution to the awarding authority. Failure to file these written objections constitutes the listed subcontractor's consent to the substitution.

If written objections are filed, the awarding authority shall give notice in writing of at least five working days to the listed subcontractor of a hearing by the awarding authority on the prime contractor's request for substitution.

- (b) Permit a subcontract to be voluntarily assigned or transferred or allow it to be performed by anyone other than the original subcontractor listed in the original bid, without the consent of the awarding authority, or its duly authorized officer.
- (c) Other than in the performance of "change orders" causing changes or deviations from the original contract, sublet or subcontract any portion of the work in excess of one-half of 1 percent of the prime contractor's total bid as to which his or her original bid did not designate a subcontractor.

No subcontractor listed by a prime contractor under Section 4104 as furnishing and installing carpeting, shall voluntarily sublet his or her subcontract with respect to any portion of the labor to be performed unless he or she specified the subcontractor in his or her bid for that subcontract to the prime contractor.

The prime contractor as a condition to assert a claim of inadvertent clerical error in the listing of a subcontractor shall within two working days after the time of the prime bid opening by the awarding authority give written notice to the awarding authority and copies of that notice to both the subcontractor he or she claims to have listed in error and the intended subcontractor who had bid to the prime contractor prior to bid opening.

Any listed subcontractor who has been notified by the prime contractor in accordance with this section as to an inadvertent clerical error shall be allowed six working days from the time of the prime bid opening within which to submit to the awarding authority and to the prime contractor written objection to the prime contractor's claim of inadvertent clerical error. Failure of the listed subcontractor to file the written notice within the six working days shall be primary evidence of his or her agreement that an inadvertent clerical error was made.

The awarding authority shall, after a public hearing as provided in Section 4107 and in the absence of compelling reasons to the contrary, consent to the substitution of the intended subcontractor:

- (a) If (1) the prime contractor, (2) the subcontractor listed in error, and (3) the intended subcontractor each submit an affidavit to the awarding authority along with such additional evidence as the parties may wish to submit that an inadvertent clerical error was in fact made, provided that the affidavits from each of the three parties are filed within eight working days from the time of the prime bid opening, or
- (b) If the affidavits are filed by both the prime contractor and the intended subcontractor within the specified time but the subcontractor whom the prime contractor claims to have listed in error does not submit within six working days, to the awarding authority and to the prime contractor, written objection to the prime contractor's claim of inadvertent clerical error as provided in this section.

If the affidavits are filed by both the prime contractor and the intended subcontractor but the listed subcontractor has, within six working days from the time of the prime bid opening, submitted to the awarding authority and to the prime contractor written objection to the prime contractor's claim of inadvertent clerical error, the awarding authority shall investigate the claims of the parties and shall hold a public hearing as provided in Section 4107 to determine the validity of those claims. Any determination made shall be based on the facts contained in the declarations submitted under penalty of perjury by all three parties and supported by testimony under oath and subject to cross-examination. The awarding authority may, on its own motion or that of any other party, admit testimony of other contractors, any bid registries or depositories, or any other party in possession of facts which may have a bearing on the decision of the awarding authority.

If a contractor who enters into a contract with a public entity for investigation, removal or remedial action, or disposal relative to the release or presence of a hazardous material or hazardous waste fails to pay a subcontractor registered as a hazardous waste hauler pursuant to Section 25163 of the Health and Safety Code within 10 days after the investigation, removal or remedial action, or disposal is completed, the subcontractor may serve a stop notice upon the public entity in accordance with Chapter 4 (commencing with Section 3179) of Title 15 of Part 4 of Division 3 of the Civil Code.

- (a) It shall be the responsibility of each subcontractor submitting bids to a prime contractor to be prepared to submit a faithful performance and payment bond or bonds if so requested by the prime contractor.
- (b) In the event any subcontractor submitting a bid to a prime contractor does not, upon the request of the prime contractor and at the expense of the prime contractor at the established charge or premium therefor, furnish to the prime contractor a bond or bonds issued by an admitted surety wherein the prime contractor shall be named the obligee, guaranteeing prompt and faithful performance of the subcontract and the payment of all claims for labor and materials furnished or used in and about the work to be done and performed under the subcontract, the prime contractor may reject the bid and make a substitution of another subcontractor subject to Section 4107.
- (c) (1) The bond or bonds may be required under this section only if the prime contractor in his or her written or published request for subbids clearly specifies the amount and requirements of the bond or bonds.
 - (2) If the expense of the bond or bonds required under this section is to be borne by the subcontractor, that requirement shall also be specified in the prime contractor's written or published request for subbids.
 - (3) The prime contractor's failure to specify bond requirements, in accordance with this subdivision, in the written or published request for subbids shall preclude the prime contractor from imposing bond requirements under this section.

Subletting or subcontracting of any portion of the work in excess of one-half of 1 percent of the prime contractor's total bid as to which no subcontractor was designated in the original bid shall only be permitted in cases of public emergency or necessity, and then only after a finding reduced to writing as a public record of the awarding authority setting forth the facts constituting the emergency or necessity.

A prime contractor violating any of the provisions of this chapter violates his or her contract and the awarding authority may exercise the option, in its own discretion, of (1) canceling his or her contract or (2) assessing the prime contractor a penalty in an amount of not more than 10 percent of the amount of the subcontract involved, and this penalty shall be deposited in the fund out of which the prime contract is awarded. In any proceedings under this section the prime contractor shall be entitled to a public hearing and to five days' notice of the time and place thereof.

DS-2 P-046 • 5/06

EBMUD Standard Spec. Effective: 1 Apr 88 Supersedes: 28 Feb 69

MATERIAL OR EQUIPMENT WITHOUT INSTALLATION GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

DEFINITIONS

1. Definitions

BIDDING

- 2. Proposal
- 3. Experience
- 4. Prices and Payments

CONTRACTS

- 5. Contract and Bond
- 6. Transfer of Interest
- 7. Suspension of Contract
- 8. Subcontractors

CHANGES

- 9. Changes
- 10. Changes at the Contractor's Request

PROSECUTION OF THE WORK

- 11. Inspection
- 12. Date to be Furnished by the Contractor
- 13. Specifications and Drawings
- 14. Delays
- 15. Infringement of Patents
- 16. Contractor's Financial Obligation
- 12. Date to be Furnished by the Contractor

MATERIALS AND WORKMANSHIP

- 17. Methods and Appliances
- 18. Samples or Specimens
- 19. Material and Workmanship
- 20. Defective Work
- 21. Damages

LABOR

- 22. Character of Workmen
- 23. Hours of Labor

ASSIGNMENT OF RIGHTS BY BIDDER

24. Assignments by Bidder to Purchasing Body of Rights under Federal Law Arising from Purchases Pursuant to Bid

1. **DEFINITIONS**

Wherever in the specifications and other contract documents the following terms, or pronouns in place of them, are used, the intent and meaning shall be interpreted as follows: District means the East Bay Municipal Utility District. Bidder means any individual, partnership, joint venture, or corporation submitting a proposal for performing the work and/or furnishing the material or equipment specified, acting directly or through a duly authorized representative. Contractor means the individual, partnership, joint venture, or corporation with whom the contract is made by the District. Engineer means the Chief Engineer of the District acting directly or through the Manager of the Purchasing Division, the Manager of the Design Division, the Manager of the Contraction Division, or other properly authorized agents, such agents acting within the scope of the particular duties entrusted to them.

On all questions concerning the acceptability of material or equipment and the execution of the work, the decision of the Engineer shall be final and bidding on both parties, except in the case of gross error.

2. PROPOSAL

(a) Forms. The proposal shall be made on the forms provided therefor. Blank spaces on the forms shall be properly filled, the phraseology shall not be changed, and no additions shall be

made to the items mentioned therein. Unauthorized conditions, limitations, or provisos attached to a proposal will render it informal and may cause its rejection. No telegraphic proposal nor telegraphic modification of a proposal will be considered.

(b) Name, address, and signature. The full name, business address, and business telephone number of the individual, partnership, joint venture or corporation submitting the proposal shall be typewritten or legibly printed on the proposal form. The bidder shall sign the proposal with his usual signature.

A partner shall sign for a partnership and the names and addresses of all partners shall be given.

Two officers shall sign for a corporation, the corporate name shall be attested by the corporate seal, and the names and titles of all officers of the corporation shall be given. A signature other than a corporate officer's will be accepted if an authenticated power of attorney is attached.

(c) <u>Prices</u>. The bidder shall state for each item on the bidding form, in clearly legible figures, the unit price and item total or lump sum, as the case may be, for which he proposes to perform the work and/or furnish material or equipment required by these specifications. Alteration of a price by erasure or interlineation must be explained or noted in the proposal over the signature of the bidder.

If the unit price for an item and the item total do not agree, the unit price shall prevail; however, if the unit price is ambiguous, unintelligible, or uncertain for any cause, or is omitted, or is the same amount as the entry for the item total, then the item total shall prevail and shall be divided by the estimated quantity for the item and the price thus obtained shall be the unit price.

<u>Unit price extension controls</u>. In the event of a discrepancy between the unit price extension and the total amount bid or summaries of totals, the unit price extension total shall prevail.

- (d) <u>Submission of proposal</u>. The proposal with the complete specifications booklet intact shall be enclosed in a sealed envelope marked and addressed as required in the Instructions to Bidders. Proposals received after said time or at any place other than the place of bid opening as stated in the Notice of Contractors will not be considered. Prior to bid opening, a bidder may withdraw his proposal without prejudice to himself by submitting a written request for its withdrawal to the officer who holds it.
- (e) <u>Bid Openings.</u> All proposals will be opened and declared publicly at the time and place stated in the Notice to Contractors. Bidders, their representatives, and others interested are invited to be present.
- (f) Award of contract. The right is reserved to reject any or all proposals, to accept one part of a proposal and reject the other, unless the bidder stipulates to the contrary, and to waive technical defects, as the interest of the District may require. Award will be made or proposals rejected by the District as soon as possible after bids have been opened.

3. EXPERIENCE

Bidders, if required, shall present satisfactory evidence that they have been regularly engaged in furnishing such material and equipment and/or performing such work as they propose to furnish or perform and that they are fully prepared with necessary capital, equipment, and material to begin work promptly and to conduct it as required by these specifications.

4. PRICES AND PAYMENTS

Payment at the prices agreed upon will be in full for the completed work and will cover materials, supplies, labor, tools, equipment and all other expenditures incident to a satisfactory compliance with the contract, unless otherwise specifically provided.

5. CONTRACT AND BOND

- (a) The bidder to whom award is made shall execute a written contract with the District, and shall furnish a good and approved faithful performance bond when required, within fifteen days after receiving the forms for execution. If the bidder to whom award is made fails to enter into the contract as herein provided, and furnish the said bond when required, this shall be just cause for the annulment of the award and the forfeiture of the bidder's security, if any; and award may, at the discretion of the Board of Directors of the District, be made to the bidder whose bid is the next most acceptable in the opinion of the Board; and such bidder shall fulfill every stipulation embraced herein as if he were the party to whom the first award was made.
- (b) The contract shall be on the form of the District. The notice to contractors, instructions to bidders, proposal, general requirements, specifications and drawings, contained in or by reference made part of these specifications will be deemed a part of the contract.
- (c) The faithful performance bond shall be on the form of the District and shall be executed by a responsible surety company or companies in an amount not less than 100% of the estimated aggregate payments to be made under the contract, conditioned upon the faithful performance by the Contractor of all covenants and stipulations in the contract. The surety or sureties on all bonds furnished must be satisfactory to the District. The District will reject surety bonds obtained from any company not holding Certificate of Authority from the U.S. Secretary of the Treasury under the Act of Congress approved July 30, 1947, (6 U.S.C., Secs. 6-13) as acceptable sureties on Federal bonds. A bond in a multiple of \$1,000 only will be made; provided, however, that the amount of the bond shall otherwise be fixed at the lowest sum that will fulfill all conditions herein set forth.

If, during the continuance of the contract, any of the sureties, in the opinion of the District, are or become irresponsible, the District may require other or additional sureties, which the Contractor shall furnish to the satisfaction of the District within ten days after notice, and in default thereof the contract may be suspended and the materials purchased or the work completed as provided in Paragraph 7 hereof.

It is understood and agreed that modifications or alterations made in these specifications shall not operate to release any surety from liability on any bond or bonds required to be given herein.

(d) <u>Authority to sign contract and bond</u>. A corporation, or a company, or partnership operating under a fictitious name, to which an award is made, will be required, before the contract is finally executed, to furnish evidence of its corporate existence and evidence that the officer signing the contract and bond for the corporation is duly authorized to do so.

6. TRANSFER OF INTEREST

No interest in the contract shall be transferred to any other party without permission of the Board of Directors of the District.

7. SUSPENSION OF CONTRACT

If the Contractor fails to begin the delivery of the material or to commence work as provided in the contract, or fails to make delivery of material promptly as ordered, or to maintain the rate of delivery of material or progress as ordered, or to maintain the rate of delivery of material or progress of the work in such a manner as in the opinion of the Engineer will ensure a full compliance with the contract within the time limit, or if in the opinion of the Engineer the Contractor is not carrying out the provisions of the contract in their true intent and meaning, written notice will be served on him to provide within a specified time for a satisfactory compliance with the contract. If he neglects or refuses to comply with such notice, the District may suspend the operation of all or any part of the contract, or it may in its discretion after such notice perform any part of the work or purchase any, or all of the material included in the contract or required for the completion thereof at the expense of the Contractor, without suspending the contract.

Any cost to the District in excess of the contract price, arising from the suspension of the contract or from work performed or purchase made by the District, either before or after suspension, and required on account of failure of the Contractor to comply with his contract or the orders of the Engineer issued in pursuance thereof, will be charged to the Contractor and his sureties, who shall be liable therefor. If the net credits shall be in excess of the claims of the District against the Contractor, the balance will be paid to the Contractor or his legal representatives.

If, in the opinion of the Engineer, an emergency exists for the furnishing of certain material or the performance of certain work in order to ensure compliance with the terms of the contract and if the Contractor fails to furnish such material or to perform such work within a reasonable time fixed by written notice from the Engineer to the Contractor, then the Engineer shall have the power to furnish such material or to perform such work at the

expense of the Contractor and his sureties, who shall be liable therefor.

In the determination of the question whether there has been such noncompliance with the contract as to warrant its suspension or the furnishing of material or the performance of work by the District, as herein provided, the decision of the Engineer shall be final and binding upon both parties. Suspension of the contract, or any part thereof, shall operate only to terminate the right of the Contractor to proceed with the work covered by the contract or the suspended portion thereof. provisions of the contract permitting the District to make changes and to make proper adjustment of accounts to cover any increase or decrease of cost on account of such changes and all other stipulations of the contract except those giving the Contractor the right to proceed with work on the items covered by the suspension, shall be and remain in full force and effect after such suspension and until the contract shall have been completed and final payment or final adjustment of accounts made.

8. SUBCONTRACTORS

When requested, the Contractor shall furnish the name and address of each subcontractor contracting directly with him, together with a statement showing the character and location of work, time limit, if any, and if requested, the amount of money involved in each subcontract. Each subcontract shall contain a reference to the contract between the District and the principal Contractor, and the terms of the contract and all parts thereof shall be made part of such subcontract insofar as applicable to the work covered thereby. Each subcontract shall provide for its annulment at the order of the Engineer if in his opinion the subcontractor fails to comply with the requirements of the principal contract insofar as the same may be applicable to his work.

9. CHANGES

(a) General. The District reserves the right to make changes in the design of materials, equipment, or machinery, to make alterations or additions to or deviations or omissions from the specifications and drawings, to increase or decrease the quantity of any item or portion of work or to omit any item or portion of the work, as may be deemed by the Engineer to be necessary or advisable and to order such extra work as may be determined by the Engineer to be required for the proper execution and completion of the whole work contemplated. Any such changes will be ordered in writing by the Engineer.

The determination of the Engineer on all questions relating to changes, including extra work, shall be conclusive and binding against both parties to the contract except in the case of gross error.

- (b) Extra work. New and unforeseen work will be classed as extra work when it is determined by the Engineer that such work is not covered by any of the bid items for which there is a bid price. Extra work also includes work specifically designated as extra work in the specifications or drawings. The Contractor shall furnish the required labor, materials, and equipment and shall perform such extra work upon receipt of a written change order therefor from the Engineer. Extra work performed in the absence of such written change order will not be paid for.
- (c) <u>Adjustments.</u> If changes ordered by the Engineer result in an increase or decrease of cost to the Contractor, the Engineer will make such equitable adjustments as he may deem reasonable and proper. The written change order will specify the payment to be made or credit to be taken and adjustment of the contract time, if any. Payment in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in such written change order shall constitute full compensation for all work included therein or required thereby.

Prior to issuing a change order, the Engineer may request the Contractor to submit a proposal covering the changes. Within 15 days after receiving such a request the Contractor shall submit his proposal to the Engineer, including in it any claim for compensation and extension of contract time. In his determination of equitable adjustment, the Engineer will use the Contractor's proposal or parts thereof as he deems reasonable and proper.

(d) Protest procedure. Should the Contractor disagree with any terms or conditions set forth in a change order, he shall proceed with the work and shall submit a written protest to the Engineer within 15 days after the receipt of the change order. The protest shall state the points of disagreement, contract references, quantities, and costs involved. The Engineer will consider and investigate such protest within a reasonable time and his decision thereon shall be conclusive and binding against both parties to the contract, except in the case of gross error. If a written protest is not submitted within the above-specified time, adjustment of contract payment and contract time will be made as set forth in the written change order.

When the protest relates to compensation, the Contractor shall keep full and complete records of the costs of such work and shall permit the Engineer to have such access thereto as may be necessary to assist in the determination of the compensation payable for such work. When the protest relates to the adjustment of contract time for the completion of the work, the time to be allowed therefor will be determined as provided in Paragraph 14, Delays.

10. CHANGES AT THE CONTRACTOR'S REQUEST

If the Contractor, on account of conditions developing during the progress of the work, finds it impracticable to comply strictly with these specifications and applies in writing for a modification of requirements or of methods of work, such change may be authorized by the Engineer, if not detrimental to the work and if without additional cost to the District.

11. INSPECTION

All materials furnished and work done under this contract will be subject to rigid inspection. The Contractor shall furnish without cost to the District complete facilities, including the necessary labor, for the inspection of all material and workmanship. The Engineer, or his authorized agent or agents, at all times shall have access to all parts of the shop and the works where such material under his inspection is being manufactured or the work performed. Work or material that does not conform to the specifications, although accepted through oversight, may be rejected at any stage of the work. Whenever the Contractor is permitted to do night work, or work on Saturday, Sunday or a holiday, or to vary the period during which work is carried on each day, he shall give the Engineer due notice, so that inspection may be provided. Such work shall be done under regulations to be furnished in writing by the Engineer.

12. DATA TO BE FURNISHED BY THE CONTRACTOR

The Contractor shall furnish the Engineer reasonable facilities for obtaining such information as he may desire respecting the character of the materials and the progress and manner of the work. The Contractor shall furnish such data, drawings, and/or certifications required by the special provisions or specifications.

13. SPECIFICATIONS AND DRAWINGS

The Contractor shall keep on the work a copy of all specifications, drawings, and change orders pertaining to the work and shall at all times give the Engineer access thereto.

Anything mentioned in the specifications and not shown on the drawings or shown on the drawings and not mentioned in the specifications shall be of like effect as though shown or mentioned in both. In case of different between drawings and specifications, the specifications shall govern. The Engineer will furnish from time-to-time such detail drawings and information as he may consider necessary for the Contractor's guidance, unless otherwise provided in the proposal, contract, or special requirements.

14. DELAYS

If any delay is caused the Contractor by specific orders of the Engineer to stop work, or by the performance of extra work ordered by the Engineer, or by failure of the District to provide material, or necessary instructions for carrying on the work, or by strikes having a direct effect on the work, or act of God, such delay will entitle the Contractor to an equivalent extension of time; provided that the Contractor has taken reasonable precautions to prevent delays due to such causes and provided that the Contractor shall notify the Engineer in writing of the causes of delay within 15 days from the beginning of any such delay. The Engineer will investigate the facts and ascertain the extent of the delay, and his findings thereon shall be final and conclusive. except in the case of gross error.

An extension of time must be approved by the Engineer to be effective, but an extension of time, whether with or without consent of the sureties, shall not release the sureties from their obligations, which shall remain in full force until the discharge of the contract. In no event shall the Contractor be entitled to compensation or damages resulting directly or indirectly from any of the causes of delay hereinabove specified or from delays or hindrances to the work from any cause or causes whatever.

15. INFRINGEMENT OF PATENTS

The Contractor shall hold and save the District. its officers, agents, servants, and employees harmless from and against all and every demand or demands, of any nature or kind, for or on account of the use of any patented invention, process, equipment, article, or appliance employed in the execution of the work or included in the material or supplies agreed to be furnished under the contract, and should the Contractor, his agents, servants or employees, or any of them, be enjoined from furnishing or using any invention, process, equipment, article, material, supplies, or appliance supplied or required to be supplied or used under this contract, the Contractor shall promptly substitute other inventions, processes, equipment, articles, materials,

supplies, or appliances in lieu thereof, of equal efficiency, quality, finish, suitability, and market value, and satisfactory in all respects to the Engineer. Or in the event that the Engineer elects, in lieu of such substitution, to have supplied, and to retain and use, any such invention, process, equipment, article, material, supplies, or appliances, as made by this contract be required to be supplied and used, in that event the Contractor shall at his expense pay such royalties and secure such valid licenses as may be requisite and necessary to enable the District, its officers. agents, servants and employees, or any of them, to use such invention, process, equipment, article, material, supplies, or appliances without being disturbed or in any way interfered with by any proceeding in law or equity on account thereof. Should the Contractor neglect or refuse promptly to make the substitution hereinabove required, or to pay such royalties and secure such licenses as may be necessary and requisite for the purpose aforesaid, then in that event the Engineer shall have the right to make such substitution, or the District may pay such royalties and secure such licenses and charge the cost thereof against any money due the Contractor from the District, or recover the amount thereof from him and his surety, notwithstanding final payment under this contract may have been made.

16. CONTRACTOR'S FINANCIAL OBLIGATION

The Contractor shall promptly make payments to all persons supplying labor and materials used in the execution of the contract.

17. METHODS AND APPLIANCES

The methods and appliances adopted by the Contractor shall be such as will, in the opinion of the Engineer, secure satisfactory quality of work and will enable the Contractor to complete the work in the time agreed upon. If any time the methods and appliances appear inadequate, the Engineer may order the Contractor to improve their character or efficiency, and the Contractor shall conform to such order; but failure of the Engineer to order such improvement of methods or efficiency will not relieve the Contractor from his obligation to perform satisfactory work and to finish it in the time agreed upon.

18. SAMPLES OR SPECIMENS

The Contractor shall submit samples or prepare test specimens of such materials to be furnished or used in the work as the Engineer may require.

19. MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP

All materials must be of the specified quality and equal to approved sample, if samples have been required. All work shall be done and completed in a thorough, workmanlike manner, notwithstanding any omission from these specifications or the drawings, and it shall be the duty of the Contractor to call attention to apparent errors or omissions and request instructions before proceeding with the work. The Engineer may, by appropriate instructions, correct errors and supply omissions, which instructions shall be binding upon the Contractor as though contained in the original specifications or drawings.

All materials furnished and all work done must be satisfactory to the Engineer. Work, material, or machinery not in accordance with these specifications, in the opinion of the Engineer, shall be made to conform thereto. Unsatisfactory material will be rejected.

20. DEFECTIVE WORK

The Contractor shall replace at his own expense any part of the work that has been improperly executed. If he refuses or neglects to replace such defective work, it may be replaced by the District at the expense of the Contractor, and his sureties shall be liable therefor.

21. DAMAGES

All loss or damage to material or equipment to be furnished under the contract occurring prior to receipt and final acceptance of the work shall be sustained by the Contractor. The Contractor shall sustain all losses arising from unforeseen obstructions or difficulties, either natural or artificial, encountered in the prosecution of the work, or from any action of the elements prior to final acceptance of the work, or from an act or omission on the part of the Contractor not authorized by the specifications.

22. CHARACTER OF WORKMEN

None but skilled foremen and workmen shall be employed on work requiring special qualifications.

23. HOURS OF LABOR

Eight (8) hours' labor constitutes a legal day's work under the contract. The time of service of any workman employed upon the work shall be limited and restricted to eight (8) hours during any one calendar day, and forty (40) hours during any one calendar week. The Contractor shall, as a penalty to the State or the District, forfeit twenty-five dollars (\$25.00) for each workman employed in the execution of the

contract by the Contractor or by any subcontractor for each calendar day during which such workman is required or permitted to work more than eight (8) hours in any calendar day and forty (40) hours in any one calendar week in violation of the provisions of Article 3, Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2 (Secs. 1810 and following) of the Labor Code of the State of California and any amendments thereof; provided however, that in accordance with the provisions of Section 1815 of the Labor Code. work performed by employees of the Contractor in excess of eight (8) hours per day and forty (40) hours during one calendar week. shall be permitted upon compensation for all hours worked in excess of eight (8) hours per day at not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay. The Contractor and every subcontractor shall keep an accurate record showing the name and the actual hours worked each calendar day and each calendar week by each workman employed by him in connection with the work: the record shall be kept open at all reasonable hours to the inspection of the District and to the Division of Labor Law Enforcement of the State of California.

24. ASSIGNMENT BY BIDDER TO PURCHASING BODY OF RIGHTS UNDER FEDERAL LAW ARISING FROM PURCHASES PURSUANT TO BID

In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act [(Chapter 2 commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code], arising from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders final payment to the bidder.

INSURANCE FORMS

SPECIMENS FORMS: The forms of workers' compensation insurance and public liability insurance included in the following pages shall be examined by each bidder, but they are **SPECIMENS ONLY** and not to be filled out. They are identical to the forms the successful bidder will be required to execute upon award.



CERTIFICATE OF PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE

THIS IS TO CERTIFY TO):	East Bay Municipal Utility District (EBMUD) Department: Street Address: Mailing Address: City, State, Zip:
THE FOLLOWING DESC	RIBED	POLICY HAS BEEN ISSUED TO:
District Contract Numb	er: P	UR 085
Insured:		
Address:		
LOCATION AND DESCR	RIPTION	OF PROJECT/AGREEMENT:
To provide District em	ployees \	with prescription safety eyeglasses, as specified.
	,	
TYPE OF INSURANCE:	Profes	sional Liability/Errors and Omissions (Claims Made Basis)
MINIMUM LIMITS OF LIA	ABILITY:	\$1,000,000 each claim and in the aggregate.
INSURANCE COMPANY	: <u> </u>	
POLICY NUMBER:		
POLICY TERM:	From:	To:
		The policy will not be canceled nor the above coverage reduced without 30 days written notice to East Bay Municipal Utility District at the address above.
		IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED the above policy provides insurance as required by the agreement between East Bay Municipal Utility District and the Insured.
		Signed:
		Authorized Signature of Broker, Agent, or Underwriter
Date:		Firm:
		Address
		Phone:
policies listed herein. Notwithsta	anding any ance may t	is not an insurance policy and does not amend, extend, or alter the coverage afforded by the requirement, term or condition of any contract or other document with respect to which this be issued or may pertain, the insurance afforded by the policies described herein is subject to all

RM-018 8/04 UF020-33.doc



CERTIFICATE OF COMMERCIAL GENERAL AND AUTO LIABILITY INSURANCE

THI	S IS T	O CERTIFY	TO:		East Bay Municipa	al Utility Distric	t (EBMU	D)	
			Department: Street Address:	375 Elevent	h Street	MS 102			
				Mailing Address:	PO Box 240		100 102		
					City, State, Zip:	Oakland, C		1055	
		LOWING DE	-00010	ED DOL	OV HAO DEEN I	OUED TO			
	_	Contract Num		_	ICY HAS BEEN IS				
Ins	sured:		ibei						
Ad	ldress	:							
LO	CATIC	N AND DES	CRIPT	ION OF I	PROJECT/AGREE	EMENT:			
T	o pro	vide Distric	t emplo	oyees w	ith prescription s	safety eyegla	sses, as	specified (PUR	085).
	ITS O	INSURANC F LIABILITY MINIMUM)	': \$1	,000,000	General and Aut Occurrence, Bodi Occurrence, Bodi	ily Injury, Prop	erty Dam	age-General Liab	
SE	ELF IN	ISURED RE	TENTIC	ON (\$):	(Auto)		(GL)		(if applicable)
				_	Aggregate Limits	(AUTO)		(GL)	(if applicable)
		NCE COMP	•	-	(Auto)		(GL)		
		NUMBER(S		•			(GL)		
PC	DLICY	TERM:	From:	_(Auto)	(GL)		o: <u>(</u> Aı	uto)	(GL)
THE	FOL	LOWING CO	OVERA	GES OR	ENDORSEMENT	S ARE INCLU	DED IN	THE POLICY(IES	s):
1.		The District under this a			fficers and Employ ENDORSEME			ureds in the policy	v(ies) as to work being performed
2.		The covera	ge is <i>Pı</i>	rimary an	d non-contributory	∕ to any other a	applicable	e insurance carrie	d by the District.
3.	\boxtimes	The policy(i	ies) cov	ers contr	actual liability.				
4.	\boxtimes	The policy(i	ies) is w	vritten on	an occurrence ba	sis.			
5.	\boxtimes	The policy	(ies) co	over(s) <i>k</i>	proad form prope	erty damage	iability.		
6.	\boxtimes	The policy(ies) covers <i>personal injury</i> (libel, slander, and wrongful entry and eviction) liability.							
7.		The policy(i	ies) cov	ers <i>expl</i> c	sion, collapse, an	d underground	hazards	S .	
8.	\boxtimes	The policy(ies) covers products and completed operations.							
9.	\boxtimes	The policy(i	ies) cov	ers the u	se of owned, non-	owned and hir	ed auton	nobiles.	
10.			he threa	atened re	lease of pollutants				lity for claims related to the ssulting from Consultant's
11.	\boxtimes	The policy(i East Bay M	ies) will lunicipa	not be call Utility D	anceled nor the ab istrict at the addre	oove coverage ess above.	s/endors	ements reduced v	vithout 30 days written notice to
					pove policies pro nd the insured.	ovide liability	nsurand	e as required by	the agreement between the
Si	gned						Firm		
Ad	dress						Date		
							Phon	ne	

RM 015 • 8/11 UF020-30.doc



RM-017 3/26/10

CERTIFICATE OF WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE

THIS IS TO CERTIFY	TO:	East Bay Municipal Utility District (EBMUD)
		Department: Street Address: 375 11 th Street, MS 102
		Mailing Address: P.O. Box 24055
		City, State, Zip: Oakland, CA 94623-1055
THE FOLLOWING D	ESCRIBED	D POLICY HAS BEEN ISSUED TO:
District Purchase Oro Number:	der	
(Completed by EBMUD)	_	
Insured:		
Address:	_	
	_	
LOCATION AND DES	SCRIPTION	N OF PROJECT/AGREEMENT:
To provide District	employees	with prescription safety eyeglasses, as specified (PUR 085).
TYPE OF INSURANC	E: Work	ters' Compensation Insurance as required by California State Law.
The Workers' Compensa	ation Carrier	r agrees to waive rights of recovery against District regardless of the applicability of
any insurance proceeds,	and to requi	ire all indemnifying parties to do likewise. All Workers' Compensation coverage
		older shall be endorsed to delete the subrogation condition as to District, or must d to waive subrogation prior to a loss.
-		to waive sublogation prior to a loss.
INSURANCE COMPA	ANY:	
POLICY NUMBER:		
POLICY TERM:	From:	To:
		The policy will not be canceled nor the above coverage reduced without 30 days writte
		notice to East Bay Municipal Utility District at the address above.
		IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED the above policy provides insurance as required by the agreement between East Bay Municipal Utility District at the Insured.
		agreement between East Bay Municipal Othity District at the insured.
		Stoned:
		Signed:
Date:		
Date:		Firm:
Date:		
		Firm:
E-mail		Firm:

insurance may be issued or may pertain, the insurance afforded by the policies described herein is subject to all the terms, exclusions, and conditions of the policies."

UF020-29.doc